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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Introduction

Barings International Umbrella Fund (the “Unit Trust”) is a unit trust managed by Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited
(the “Manager”). The Unit Trust was established pursuant to the Unit Trusts Act, 1990, and a Trust Deed dated 11 February 1992 (as
supplemented or amended from time to time) (the “Trust Deed”) made between the Manager and Northern Trust Fiduciary Services
(Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) and authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “CBI”), pursuant to the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”). The
Unit Trust is also listed on the Euronext Dublin Global Exchange Market.

The Unit Trust is organised in the form of an umbrella fund. The Trust Deed provides that the Unit Trust may offer separate series of
units, each representing an interest in a Unit Trust Fund (a “Fund”) comprised of a distinct portfolio of investments. A separate Fund
is maintained for each series of units and is invested in accordance with the investment objective applicable to such Fund to date.
Each Fund may create more than one class of units in relation to a Fund (a “class”) and these separate classes of units may be
denominated in different currencies. A unit represents a beneficial interest in a Fund (a “unit”).

The Unit Trust has thirteen active Funds as at 30 April 2023 which have been approved by the CBI:

Fund Fund launch date

* The Funds merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on the above dates.

Each of the Funds had several classes of units on offer at the financial year-end, which are outlined in note 11 to these financial
statements. Further details of the Funds are contained in the individual supplements to the full Prospectus.

The following Funds of the Unit Trust are registered for sale in Hong Kong, and are authorised by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) pursuant to the provisions of the Hong Kong Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds, supplemented or
consolidated from time to time:

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund
Barings Asia Growth Fund
Barings Australia Fund

Barings Europa Fund

Barings Hong Kong China Fund
Barings Global Bond Fund
Barings Global Balanced Fund

Further details of the Funds are contained in the supplement to the Prospectus. The assets of the Funds are invested in accordance
with the investment objective and policy.

BARINGS



Barings International Umbrella Fund

Introduction (continued)

The financial statements include all the trades received up until 12:00p.m. (Irish time) on 28 April 2023, the valuation point for the Unit
Trust. An adjustment has been made to the value of investments in Barings Europa Fund, Barings Global Bond Fund, Barings Global
Balanced Fund, Barings Europe Select Fund, Barings German Growth Fund, Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund and Barings
Global Equity Allocation Fund to reflect the close of business prices on 28 April 2023.




Barings International Umbrella Fund

Investment Objective and Policy

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund

The investment objective of the Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of
assets by investing in companies in Asia which the Manager believes will benefit from the economic growth and development of the
region.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets at any one time in equities and
equity-related securities of companies incorporated in, or exercising the predominant part of their economic activity in, countries
which are members of the Association of South-East Asian Nations (“ASEAN”), or quoted or traded on the stock exchanges in those
countries. The members of ASEAN include Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines, Malaysia, Indonesia and Vietnam.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

Barings Asia Growth Fund

The investment objective of Barings Asia Growth Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of assets by
investing in Asia and the Pacific region excluding Japan. The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least
70% of its total assets in equities and equity-related securities of companies incorporated in, or exercising the predominant part of
their economic activity in, the Asia Pacific region excluding Japan, or quoted or traded on the stock exchanges in those countries,
including developed and emerging markets.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

Barings Australia Fund

The investment objective of the Barings Australia Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of assets by
investing in Australia. The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets at any one
time in equities and equity-related securities of companies incorporated in, or exercising the predominant part of their economic
activity, in Australia, or quoted or traded on the stock exchanges in Australia.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

Barings Europa Fund

The investment objective of the Barings Europa Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of assets by
investing in companies in Europe (including the United Kingdom). The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing
at least 70% of its total assets at any one time in equities and equity-related securities of companies incorporated in, or exercising
the predominant part of their economic activity in, any European country (including the United Kingdom), or quoted or traded on the
stock exchanges in such countries.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

Barings Hong Kong China Fund

The investment objective of Barings Hong Kong China Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth in the value of assets
by investing in Hong Kong, China and Taiwan.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets at any one time either directly
in equities or through equity-related securities (including depositary receipts) of companies (i) incorporated, or (ii) exercising the
predominant part of their economic activity, or (iii) quoted or traded on the stock exchanges in markets in Hong Kong or China.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

BARINGS
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Investment Objective and Policy (continued)

Barings Global Bond Fund

The investment objective of the Barings Global Bond Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve an attractive level of income together with long-
term growth in the value of assets by investing in a diversified portfolio of fixed-interest securities.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets at any one time in an internationally
diversified portfolio of both corporate and government fixed-interest securities. The portfolio may also, from time to time, include
securities with floating interest rates.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in fixed income instruments of countries that exhibit positive or improving
environmental, social and governance (ESG) characteristics. The Fund will also invest at least 75% of the Fund’s total assets in
countries that exhibit strong or improving human development conditions, as measured by the United Nations Human Development
Index (HDI) and calculated as the average of the five year period as of two years prior to the investment period.

Barings Global Balanced Fund
The investment objective of the Barings Global Balanced Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth.

The Fund invests in a diversified range of international equities and debt securities (including, without limit, in emerging markets),
generally with a focus on Asian equities. Investments may also be made in cash and in Money Market Instruments on an ancillary
basis or where considered appropriate in light of market conditions.

Equities may include equity-related instruments such as American depository receipts and global depository receipts. The Fund will
primarily invest in securities that are listed or traded on markets and exchanges drawn from the list contained in Appendix Il of the
Prospectus.

The debt securities in which the Fund may invest in include both fixed and floating rate bonds issued by governments, local authorities,
public international bodies and corporate issuers, as well as convertible bonds (excluding contingent convertible bonds). The Fund
may invest in Investment Grade debt securities and up 10% of its Net Asset Value in Sub-Investment Grade debt securities. Where
an eligible investment is split-rated, the higher quality rating will apply in order to determine eligibility for the Fund. Where an eligible
asset is not rated by an internationally recognised rating agency, the Investment Manager may determine its own assessment of credit
quality and assign an agency equivalent rating to the asset.

Barings Global Technology Equity Fund
The investment objective of the Barings Global Technology Equity Fund (the “Fund”) is to achieve long-term capital growth.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing in equities listed or traded on a wide range of international markets
across sectors exposed to technology and communication services. The Fund will invest at least 70% of its total assets in equities
and equity-related securities listed, quoted or traded on global markets, all of which could be in emerging markets. For this purpose,
total assets exclude cash and ancillary liquidities.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) characteristics.

Barings Europe Select Fund
The Barings Europe Select Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

The investment objective of the Barings Europe Select Fund is to achieve long term capital growth by investing in Europe excluding
the United Kingdom.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 75% of its total assets directly and indirectly in equities and
equity-related securities of smaller companies incorporated in, or exercising the predominant part of their economic activity, or quoted
or traded on the stock exchanges in Europe excluding the United Kingdom.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

BARINGS




Barings International Umbrella Fund

Investment Objective and Policy (continued)

Barings German Growth Fund
The Barings German Growth Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

The investment objective of the Barings German Growth Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth by investing in Germany.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 75% of its total assets directly and indirectly in equities
and equity related securities of companies incorporated in, or exercising the predominant part of their economic activity in Germany,
or quoted or traded on the stock exchanges in Germany.

Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund

The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7
October 2022.

The investment objective of the Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund is to generate income together with long-term capital
growth through investment in the securities of companies worldwide.

The Fund will seek to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets at any one time in equity and equity
related securities (as described further below) of companies worldwide. For this purpose, total assets exclude cash and ancillary
liquidities.

The Fund will invest at least 50% of the Fund’s total assets in equities of companies that exhibit positive or improving environmental,
social and governance ("ESG") characteristics.

In addition, up to 30% of the total assets of the Fund may be invested in, or provide exposure to:

» debt securities of issuers worldwide. The debt securities in which the Fund may invest may be fixed or floating rate, issued
by governments, supranationals, agencies and companies. Debt securities may be rated investment grade or sub-investment
grade by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) or another internationally recognised rating agency, or be, in the opinion of the Manager,
of similar credit status, or may be unrated. There are no limits or restrictions on credit rating, maturity or duration of any debt or
equity related security (such as debt securities convertible into equities) which may be held by the Fund; however, investment in
subinvestment grade debt securities and unrated debt securities together will not exceed 10% of the Net Asset Value of the Fund.

« cash and ancillary liquidities, including deposits, treasury bills, government bonds or short-term Money Market Instruments,
including commercial paper and certificates of deposit, in normal market conditions.

Barings China A-Share Fund
The Barings China A-Share Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

The investment objective of the Barings China A-Share Fund is to achieve capital growth through investing in companies established
or operating in the People’s Republic of China.

The Fund seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets in quoted or traded equity investments
in China A-Shares or other Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor (the “QFII”) permitted securities which are listed on the Shanghai
or Shenzhen markets listed in the Prospectus, as permitted under the QFIl Regulations.

Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund

The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18
November 2022.

The investment objective of the Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund is to achieve long-term capital growth by investing in equities
listed or traded in markets globally.




Barings International Umbrella Fund

Investment Objective and Policy (continued)

Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund (continued)

The Fund is actively managed and seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing at least 70% of its total assets directly and
indirectly in equities and equity-related securities of companies which are constituents of the MSCI All Country World Index (ACWI)
(the “Index”). The Fund seeks to over perform the Index. The Index captured large and mid-cap representation and as at the date
of this Supplement captures approximately 85% of global investable equities. The Index is designed to measure the equity market
performance of developed and emerging markets. The Fund’s exposure to emerging markets may exceed 20% of Net Asset Value.
Investors should note that the Fund does not intend to track the Index.

In order to implement the investment policy the Fund may gain indirect exposure through equity-related securities, such as American
depositary receipts and global depositary receipts. Investment may also be made in cash and ancillary liquidities such as deposits,
treasury bills or short-term Money Market Instruments, including commercial paper and certificates of deposit, in normal market
conditions. The Fund may also invest up to 10% of its Net Asset Value in collective investment schemes including money market
funds.

Please refer to the Prospectus for the full investment objective and policy for all the Funds.

How the Funds are managed

The Manager of Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund, Barings Asia Growth Fund, Barings Australia Fund and Barings Hong Kong China
Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager of the Funds. In turn, Baring Asset Management
Limited has appointed Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited and Barings LLC as Sub-Investment Managers to the Funds.

At Barings, our equity investment teams share the philosophy of quality Growth at a Reasonable Price (“GARP”). We believe that
earnings growth is the principal driver of equity market performance over the medium to long term, and favour high quality companies
for their ability to over perform the market on a risk-adjusted basis. In particular, we believe that structured fundamental research and
a disciplined investment process combining quality growth and upside disciplines can allow us to identify attractively priced, long-
term growth companies which will over perform the market. Our approach emphasises quality criteria when looking at companies
and a three- to five-year time horizon when forecasting company earnings. In determining upside, we use consistent and transparent
methods to place emphasis on discounted earnings models.

The Manager of Barings Europa Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager of the Fund.

The Fund is invested in European equity markets (including the United Kingdom), using a “bottom-up” investment approach. This
means that we focus more on the individual merits of a specific company, rather than taking a stance on a sector of the market or
macroeconomic trends such as interest rate rises. Within this, Barings manages the Fund using a GARP approach. This means
that when researching candidates for the portfolio, we place just as much emphasis on the likely growth in corporate earnings at a
company as we do on the unit price valuation before deciding whether to invest or not. We believe this approach combines the best
features of both “growth” and “value” investment styles, to the benefit of investors. We invest in companies which we believe offer
potential for delivering better than expected earnings growth. We do this by carefully researching a company’s corporate strategy
and revenue sources. An important part of the investment process involves regular meetings with the management of companies in
which we are considering investment. We then work to put a price on the units of the company in the light of our assessment of its
earnings prospects and compare this to its peers in the sector and globally. When we are satisfied that a company meets our criteria
for investing, we purchase an appropriate number of units.

The Manager of Barings Global Bond Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager of the Fund.
Barings LLC and Barings Japan Limited were appointed as Sub-Investment Managers of the Fund.

Baring Asset Management Limited seeks investment returns by investing in bond markets where we believe yields are likely to fall and
avoiding those we think are expensive. The overall duration, or interest rate sensitivity, of the Fund will fluctuate as our expectations
for economic developments change, relative to the market. We will also look to add value through foreign exchange management,
identifying those markets where currencies are attractive, for example due to sound economic fundamentals or rising interest rates.

The Manager of Barings Global Balanced Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager of the
Fund.

BARINGS
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Investment Objective and Policy (continued)

How the Funds are managed (continued)

Baring Asset Management Limited takes a balanced approach to investing and invests across a wide spectrum of global equities,
bonds, and applies a tactical asset allocation strategy by identifying opportunities that it believes are attractive (based upon market
valuation measures such as price/earnings ratio, price/book ratio, dividend yield, and earnings) and markets that have diverged from
their view of economic reality (e.g. the valuation of the securities are not reflecting the intrinsic value), while carefully managing the
extent of the risk exposure of the Fund. We will seek to manage the Fund’s risk exposure by allocating asset classes between equities
and bonds and by the diversification of its portfolio. A balanced investment strategy is a way of combining investments in a portfolio
that aims to balance risk and return.

Baring Asset Management Limited’s investment process combines a long term (up to 10 years) asset return forecasting framework
with a shorter term (typically 12-18 months) approach for tactical asset allocation.

The Manager of Barings Global Technology Equity Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager
of the Fund.

Baring Asset Management Limited believes that equity markets contain unrecognised growth potential and seeks to identify this
through the analysis of a company’s business model whilst incorporating wider ESG trends often referred to as fundamental analysis.
ESG trends may evolve over time and may include environmental footprint, societal impact of products/services and effectiveness
of supervisory/management boards. Equity investment teams at Baring Asset Management Limited utilise a common investment
approach, best described as Growth at a Reasonable Price (“GARP”).

GARRP seeks to identify reasonably priced growth companies whose qualities are unrecognised by market participants by performing
structured fundamental analysis with a disciplined investment process. Based on the region, country or sector bias of a Fund, analysis
of potential growth companies’ includes their future financial performance as well as their business model and management style,
while focussing on long-term earnings growth of three to five years. We value companies utilising proprietary valuation models that
incorporate ESG analysis and macro considerations.

Baring Asset Management Limited’s strategy favours companies with well-established or improving business franchises, profitability
focused management and strong balance sheets that enable the company to execute its business strategy. We regard these
companies as higher quality as they provide transparency and allow investment professionals to forecast earnings with greater
confidence. This allows Baring Asset Management Limited to offer a strategy which should exhibit lower volatility over time. This is
further strengthened through the incorporation of a dynamic and forward-looking approach to ESG analysis, with the aim to identify
sustainable business practices. This empowers Baring Asset Management Limited to better assess both the potential risks facing the
company and the opportunities presented to it, particularly those not apparent or included in traditional fundamental analysis. This
also facilitates the Fund’s portfolio in exhibiting lower volatility over time while propagating better ESG practices. We believe that ESG
integration, a focus on forward-looking dynamics and active engagement is key to unlocking long-term returns in equity investments.

The Manager of Barings Europe Select Fund and Barings German Growth Fund has also appointed Baring Asset Management
Limited as the Investment Manager of the Funds.

At Barings, our equity investment teams share the philosophy of quality GARP. We believe that earnings growth is the principal driver
of equity market performance over the medium to long term, and favour high-quality companies for their ability to over perform the
market on a risk-adjusted basis. In particular, we believe that structured fundamental research and a disciplined investment process
combining quality, growth and upside disciplines can allow us to identify attractively priced, longterm growth companies which will over
perform the market. Our approach emphasises quality criteria when looking at companies and a three-to five-year time horizon when
forecasting company earnings. In determining upside, we use consistent and transparent methods to place emphasis on discounted
earnings models.

The Manager of Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment
Manager of the Fund.

Our investment process is predominantly “bottom-up”. To find the exceptional businesses that make up the strategy, we use a broad
range of research inputs: Barings’ internal analytical resources, industry experts, company meetings, quantitative research and
company reports, among others. We are natural sceptics — rather than buying into a “story”, we seek proof of a company’s excellence.
Only our highest-conviction ideas make it into the strategy, so robust debate and close analysis of fundamentals are key.

BARINGS




Barings International Umbrella Fund

Investment Objective and Policy (continued)

How the Funds are managed (continued)
We evaluate candidate companies using the following three-stage process:

*  Quality: we scrutinise a company’s business model, looking for a range of features and competitive advantages, including network
effects, benefits to incumbency, large installed bases, leading brands or a sustainable research and development (“R&D”) edge.
Upon inspection, companies must earn attractive returns on capital, possess excellent financial profiles and have a management
team committed to its role as the steward of shareholder wealth.

*  Growth: we assess our candidate companies’ ability to deliver long-term profit growth. Sustained growth of both capital and
dividends can only be achieved if the underlying business is flourishing. Our process leads us to firms with stable and visible
growth profiles rather than companies with more speculative growth ambitions, or those businesses whose fortunes are heavily
linked to unpredictable external forces. The ideal investment is a growing company with meaningful control of its own destiny.

«  Valuation and scenario analysis: financial statements are “cleaned” of any accounting distortions (such as off balance-sheet
liabilities) which may obscure the true financial position of a business, and companies are put through a series of business-
specific stress tests. The aim is to ascertain the underlying risk that an investment presents, and to gauge the scale of profit and
dividend progression we can reasonably expect under various circumstances. Many companies “fail” this stage of the process
— businesses are often found to present too much risk once their underlying fundamentals are “tested”. If a company does pass
this stage, we then ascertain the long-term value of the business using a highly consistent and cash-based set of valuation
techniques.

The Manager of Barings China A-Share Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager of the
Fund. In turn, Baring Asset Management Limited has appointed Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited as the Sub-Investment
Manager of the Fund.

The Fund invests in Chinese companies listed on the stock exchanges of Shanghai and Shenzhen using a "bottom-up" investment
approach. This means that we are focused more on the individual merits of specific companies, rather than taking a stance on the
outcome of a sector of the market or macroeconomic developments such as interest rate rises.

Within this, the Fund is managed using a quality GARP approach. When researching candidates for the portfolio, we look for companies
with three characteristics. Firstly, companies with good potential for long-term earnings growth. Secondly, companies with attributes
which in our experience are associated with "high-quality" companies, such as strong balance sheets and good management teams,
with experience in delivering value to shareholders. Finally, companies with share price valuations which still have room for upside
when compared with history or similar companies - in other words, potential for an attractive investment return.

The Manager of Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund has appointed Baring Asset Management Limited as the Investment Manager
of the Fund.

The Investment Manager adopts a top-down approach to investing in this Fund. For Global equities, this means that the Investment
Manager dynamically allocates to countries, sectors, currencies and styles. This approach incorporates the Investment Manager's
views on macroeconomic trends such as economic growth and interest rate levels. The investment strategy is implemented using
passive stock selection via a portfolio which consists of directly held equities that are constituents of the reference index. This portfolio
will normally hold between 400 and 500 stocks.

Please refer to the Prospectus for the full risk profile of each of the Funds. Investors should read the Prospectus and carefully consider
the potential risk factors as well as reward factors before investing.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Report of the Manager
For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Statement of Manager’s responsibilities

Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (the “Manager”) is required by the European Communities (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”) to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. The Manager has elected to prepare these financial statements in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 102 (“FRS 102”), the FRS applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Baring International Umbrella Fund (the “Trust”) at the financial year-end, and of the results and movements in net assets
for the financial year then ended. In preparing these financial statements, the Manager must:

» select and consistently apply suitable accounting policies;
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

»  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Unit Trust will continue
in operation.

The financial statements must comply with the disclosure requirements of the UCITS Regulations. The Manager is responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Trust and
enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with the UCITS Regulations. The Manager is also responsible for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under the Central Bank of Ireland (the “CBI”) UCITS Regulations, the assets of the Unit Trust shall be entrusted to Northern Trust
Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary") for safekeeping, and therefore custody of the Fund’s assets rests with Northern
Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited.

The financial statements are published at www.barings.com. The Directors together with the Manager and Investment Manager are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the website as far as it relates to Barings funds. Legislation in the Republic of Ireland
governing the presentation and dissemination of the financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Transactions with connected persons

Any transaction carried out with the Trust by a management company or Depositary to the Trust, the delegates or sub-delegates of
the management company or Depositary, and any associated or group of such a management company, Depositary, delegate or
sub-delegate (“connected persons”) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm’s length. Transactions must be in the best interests
of the unitholders.

The Directors of the Manager are satisfied that there are arrangements (evidenced by written procedures) in place to ensure that
the obligations set out in Regulation 43(1) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations are applied to all transactions with connected
persons, and are satisfied that transactions with connected persons entered into during the year complied with the obligations set out
in Regulation 43(1) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.

Remuneration code

The UCITS V provisions require Management Companies to establish and apply remuneration policies and practices that promote
sound and effective risk management, and do not encourage risk taking which is inconsistent with the risk profile of the UCITS.

The Manager has a Remuneration Policy in place, details of which are available on the Barings website at www.barings.com/guest/
content/remuneration-policies.

The purpose of the Manager’s remuneration policy is to seek to ensure that the remuneration arrangements of “ldentified Staff”:

(i) are consistent with and promote sound and effective risk management and do not encourage risk-taking which is inconsistent
with the risk profile, rules or instruments of incorporation of the Manager or any fund which the Manager is the manager of; and

(ii) are consistent with the Manager’s business strategy, objectives, values and interests and include measures to avoid conflicts of
interest.

Please see Appendix 5 for the remuneration disclosure.

The Manager has a business model, policies and procedures which by their nature do not promote excessive risk taking and which
take account of the nature, scale and complexity of the Manager and any of the Funds.
BARINGS
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Report of the Manager (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Managers statement

The financial statements were approved by the Directors of the Manager, Baring International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited, on
17 August 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

o' i
- . - 3 & —
Director: Director: Aj;/ 6&/ —
Sylvester O'Byrne Alan Behen

17 August 2023
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Annual Depositary Report to Unitholders
For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

We, Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited, appointed Depositary to Barings International Umbrella Fund (the “Unit
Trust”), provide this report solely in favour of the unitholders of the Unit Trust for the year ended 30 April 2023, (the “Annual Accounting
Period”). This report is provided in accordance with the UCITS Regulations European Communities (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (SI No 352 of 2011), which implemented Directive 2009/65/EU into Irish Law
(the “Regulations”). We do not, in the provision of this report, accept nor assume responsibility for any other purpose or person to
whom this report is shown.

In accordance with our Depositary obligation as provided for under the Regulations, we have enquired into the conduct of the
management company of the Unit Trust for this Annual Accounting Period and we hereby report thereon to the unitholders of the Unit
Trust as follows:

We are of the opinion that the Unit Trust has been managed during the Annual Accounting Period, in all material respects:

(i) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Unit Trust by the constitutional docu-
ments and by the Regulations; and
(ii) otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional document and the Regulations.

{)-‘v\.c.r_)f Q—’*—LL-‘ -

For and on behalf of

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited
Georges Court

54-62 Townsend Street

Dublin 2

D02 R156

Ireland

17 August 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the unitholders of the Funds of
Barings International Umbrella Fund

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Barings International Umbrella Fund’s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the Funds’ assets, liabilities and financial position as at 30 April 2023 and of their
results for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland (accounting
standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the European Communities (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements, which
comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2023;

the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for the year
then ended;

the Schedule of Investments for each of the Funds as at 30 April 2023; and

the notes to the financial statements for each of the Funds, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”) and
applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard as applicable to listed entities, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
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Our audit approach

Overview

Materiality

Overall materiality: 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis points) of Net Assets Value
("NAV") at 30 April 2023 (2022: 30 April 2022) for each of the Trust’s Funds.
Performance materiality: 75% of overall materiality.

Audit scope

The Trust is an open-ended investment Trust. We tailored the scope of our audit taking
into account the types of investments within the Funds, the involvement of the third
parties referred to below, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in
which the Trust operates. We look at each of the Funds at an individual level.

Lurdd il mreepe

Key audit matters

Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Foey audid
et Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

malifers

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements. In particular, we looked at where the manager made subjective judgements, for example the selection of
pricing sources to value the investment portfolio. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the manager that represented a
risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at We tested the investment portfolios by independently
fair value through profit or loss agreeing the valuation of investments to third party vendor

Refer to note 2(c) for the accounting policies for Financial | sources at the year-end date.

assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or | No material misstatements were identified as a result of the
loss and the Schedules of Investments in the financial procedures we performed.

statements.

The financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss included in the Statements of
Financial Position as at 30 April 2023 are valued at fair
value in line with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
in Ireland.

This is considered a key audit matter as it represents the
principal element of the financial statements.
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Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Refer to note 2(c) for the accounting policies for Financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and the Schedules of Investments in the financial

We tested the existence of the financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss by obtaining
independent confirmation of the investment positions held
as at 30 April 2023 from the Funds’ Depositary or relevant
counterparties, and agreeing the amounts to the accounting

statements. records.

No material misstatements were identified as a result of the

This is considered a key audit matter as it represents a
procedures we performed.

principal element of the financial statements.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Trust, the accounting processes and controls, and the
industry in which it operates.

The Manager controls the affairs of the Trust and is responsible for the overall investment policy which is determined by
them. The Manager has delegated certain responsibilities to Baring Asset Management Limited (the ‘Investment
Manager’) and to Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the ‘Administrator’). The
Annual Report & Audited Financial Statements, which remain the responsibility of the Manager, are prepared on their
behalf by the Administrator. The Trust has appointed Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“Depositary”) to act as Depositary of the Trust’s assets. In establishing the overall approach to our audit, we assessed the
risk of material misstatement at a fund level, taking into account the nature, likelihood and potential magnitude of any
misstatement. As part of our risk assessment, we considered the Trust’s interaction with the Administrator, and we
assessed the control environment in place at the Administrator.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for
materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature,
timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements of each of the Trust’s Funds
as follows:

Overall materiality and how
we determined it

50 basis points (2022: 50 basis points) of Net Assets Value ("NAV") at 30 April 2023
(2022: 30 April 2022) for each of the Trust’s Funds.

Rationale for benchmark
applied

We have applied this benchmark because the main objective of the Trust is to
provide investors with a total return at a Fund level, taking account of the capital
and income returns.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the
scope of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for
example in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk
assessment and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our
normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Directors of the Manager that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above 5 basis points of each Fund’s NAV, for NAV per share impacting differences (2022: 5 basis points of each Fund’s
NAYV, for NAV per share impacting differences) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the manager’s assessment of the Funds’ ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:
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Obtaining an understanding of the key indicators that are monitored with respect to the going concern
assumption and management’s future plans for the Funds over the going concern period (being 12 months from
the date of approval of the financial statements);

Reviewing available board minutes during the period under audit and those available up to the date of this report;
Considering post year end capital activity as recorded in the underlying accounting records;

Making enquiries of management with respect to any planned significant redemptions of which they have been
informed of;

Considering the liquidity risk management techniques which are available to the Funds.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Funds’ ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the Funds’
ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the manager with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other than
the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The manager is responsible for the other information. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager’s responsibilities set out on page 11, the manager is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework giving a true and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Funds’ ability to continue as going
concerns, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.
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Based on our understanding of the Trust and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to The Unit Trust Act 1990, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the
preparation of the financial statements such as the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended). We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for
fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were related to Risk of management override of control.

Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

> Reviewing financial statements disclosures and agreeing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations;

Enquiring of management and the Directors of the Manager concerning potential litigation and claims and any
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations;

Reviewing all relevant minutes of meetings of the Directors of the Manager;
Identifying and testing the appropriateness of topside journal entries and other adjustments, where material;
Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability around the nature, timing or extent of our testing;

Testing significant judgements and accounting estimates and evaluating the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business; and

Maintaining professional scepticism throughout the audit.

YYVYY ¥
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There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data
auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing
complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In
other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is
selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA website at:

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dcgci3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders of each of the Funds as a body in
accordance with the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011 (as amended) and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Patricia Johnston

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

23 August 2023
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund

Performance

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -2.28% on the Class AUSD Inc unit class and underperformed
against the performance comparator with a return of 0.04%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -3.94% on
the Class A USD Inc unit class.

ASEAN equities were broadly flat US dollar terms over the past 12 months. Market performance was underpinned by the region’s
ongoing domestic economic recovery, coupled with China’s reopening wave alongside a slowdown of policy tightening by local central
banks amid stabilising inflation and expectation of US interest rate hike cycle peaking out sometime this year. These positive factors
have helped support investor sentiment against a volatile macro backdrop externally.

Stock selection was a key detractor to relative performance of the Fund over the review period, particularly in Information Technology
led by selective Thai and Singaporean companies, while stock selection in Financials also weighed on the Fund’s relative performance.
On the bright side, the Fund had a higher exposure in Information Technology relative to the performance comparator, which ended
as a notable contributor to relative performance. Stock selection in Utilities also added value to the Fund over the past 12 months.

Atacompany level, Thailand-based debt collection services provider JMT Network Services was a key detractor to relative performance
of the Fund over the review period, as share price came under pressure on the back of concerns about slower asset growth and
cash collection. On the other hand, Indonesia’s leading lifestyle retailer PT Mitra Adiperkasa contributed notably to the Fund. The
company is poised to benefit from continuing domestic consumption recovery in the short run, alongside structural population growth
of Indonesia’s middle class and increasing budget allocated to lifestyle spending over the medium to longer run.

Market outlook

We remain constructive on ASEAN equities, as we see the potential for some of the headwinds in 2022 turning into tailwinds while
ASEAN's long-term secular drivers remaining intact. As the US Federal Reserve approaches a pause in its most aggressive rate
hike cycle, the expectation of a weakening US dollar against ASEAN currencies will allow ASEAN central banks to also pause/
ease monetary tightening according to local conditions. Meanwhile, China’s reopening is starting to reinvigorate tourism-dependent
economies like Thailand in the coming quarters as flight capacity ramps up. The current external macro backdrop with US rates
reaching its peak, and concerns rising over a potential US recession puts large domestic demand economies like Indonesia and
Philippines as attractive defensive markets with structural growth tailwinds. While more externally exposed economies like Vietnam,
Singapore and Malaysia are vulnerable to any US recession, China’s unlocking should mitigate some of that weakness. The longer-
term investment thesis for the region such as supply chain diversification beneficiaries also remain very much intact.

Valuation of ASEAN equities has fallen below its long-term average due to tighter global liquidity and rising cost of capital. With a
softer outlook on interest rate policies and expected strengthening of local currencies, there is a case for valuations to recover in
ASEAN equities. Macro factors, particularly interest rates expectations, were the major drivers of performance including stylistic
rotations since 2022 should take a backseat to earnings growth in the coming quarters as rates peak out.

Our ASEAN equity strategy remains positioned in companies exposed to the secular growth themes such as technological ubiquity
(the digitalisation and connectivity of everything), evolving lifestyle and societal values (sustainability, rising middle class, healthy
living) and de-globalisation (supply chain diversification and reshoring). The stylistic rotations have detracted from our short-term
performance, but we believe our Growth-at-a-Reasonable-Price (GARP) investment approach combined with our proprietary portfolio
construction tools will position the portfolio favourably beyond the near-term gyrations.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited
and Barings LLC,

appointed as Sub-Investment Managers by
Baring Asset Management Limited

May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from

the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
BARINGS
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Asia Growth Fund

Performance

Barings Asia Growth Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -11.64% on the Class A USD Inc unit class and underperformed
against the performance comparator with a return of -5.94%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -13.14%
on the AUSD INC unit class.

Asian equities extended the weakness and trended lower in the first half of the review period, as external macro headwinds alongside
elevated geopolitical uncertainties continued to weigh on market performance of the region. However, this was followed by a resilient
rebound in the latter half of the review period thanks to China’s reopening wave post relaxations of COVID-19 restrictions, which not
only underpinned improving economic recovery outlook in China but also benefitted its neighbouring markets within the region amid
tourism and trade revivals.

Stock selection was a key detractor to relative performance of the Fund over the review period, particularly within Consumer
Discretionary led by selective Chinese and Indian companies, as well as Information Technology amid the sector’s ongoing downcycle.
On the bright side, stock selection in Industrials contributed notably to the Fund, primarily from some of the holdings in China and
Singapore.

At a company level, Chinese e-commerce platform JD.com ended as a key drag to the Fund’s relative performance over the past 12
months, partly due to revenue pressure from soft consumption amid COVID-19 drags, coupled with concerns about the company’s
subsidy campaign for merchants that could hurt its profit margin. On the other hand, Singapore-listed Yangzijiang Shipbuilding ended
as a notable contributor to the Fund, partly driven by the announcement that the company has successfully secured its first-ever large-
sized LNG (liquefied natural gas) carrier orders, which showcased customer endorsement of its capabilities.

Market outlook

Despite the mixed earnings backdrop for Asian companies this year, we are constructive on the outlook for the region, as some of
the 2022 macro headwinds are turning to tailwinds in 2023. As the US Federal Reserve approaches a pause in its most aggressive
rate hike cycle, the expectation of a weakening US dollar against Asian currencies would allow Asian central banks to also pause or
ease monetary tightening according to local conditions. Meanwhile, China’s decisive pivot to growth will continue to unfold over the
course of the year with the property sector showing signs of recovery. The positive impact on company fundamentals should be more
pronounced in the second quarter of 2023 on top of the depressed earnings starting in the same quarter last year from Shanghai’'s
COVID-19 outbreak. As for Korean and Taiwanese equities, investors have started to position for the anticipated trough in tech
demand around mid-year, and corporate earnings could strongly rebound in 2024 as demand recovery is met with curtailed supply
growth.

Distinctive factors are likely key to support corporate earnings among ASEAN companies. Thai companies would likely benefit from
recovery of inbound Chinese tourists as well as a boost to consumption from election spending and populist policies. The Philippines
should continue to benefit from COVID-19 reopening tailwinds and pause in its aggressive rate hike cycle. In Indonesia, domestic
consumption, its improving credit cycle, and structural catalysts such as FDI (foreign direct investment) and EV (electric vehicle)
transition would help to boost profits. As for India, valuation premium for equities has reduced from an all-time high to more a
normalised level. Earnings momentum is still weak in the near-term for consumer and IT sectors but upon further corrections, there
could opportunities provided for stock pickers.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Asia Growth Fund (continued)

Market outlook (continued)

Our strategy remains positioned in stocks exposed to the secular growth themes such as technological ubiquity (digitalisation and
connectivity of everything), evolving lifestyle and societal values (sustainability, millennial/Gen Z consumption trends, healthy living)
and de-globalisation (supply chain diversification and reshoring). While the stylistic rotations have caused some volatility in recent
performance, our Growth-at-a-Reasonable-Price (GARP) investment approach has positioned our portfolios favourably beyond the
near-term gyrations.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited
and Barings LLC,

appointed as Sub-Investment Managers by
Baring Asset Management Limited

May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Australia Fund

Performance

Barings Australia Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -5.94% on the Class A USD Inc unit class and underperformed the
performance comparator, which returned -3.34%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -7.54% on the Class
A USD Inc unit class.

Concerns over an economic slowdown linked to high inflation and rising interest rates weighed on the market during the period. The
Financials and Real Estate sectors saw notable weakness in response. However, Energy was once again one of the top performing
sectors, alongside Industrials.

At stock level, Brambles was the top positive contributor to relative performance. Brambles has a global leading position in providing
re-usable pallets for transporting goods. The fund held a sizeable position in the company with our high conviction reflecting the
defensiveness of demand (closely linked to consumer staples); the measures taken by management to improve return on invested
capital and strengthen contract terms; and strong free cash flow potential that the market appeared to be under-estimating. The
company delivered earnings upgrades during the period, and we believe the outlook remains positive.

Aristocrat Leisure was the second largest contributor. It has a growing, market leadership position in gaming in Australia and North
America, underpinned by Research & Development, with a high margin and strong track record of compounding earnings growth.
Aristocrat also owns some strong mobile game franchises which occupy the #1 position in certain niches. Shares performed well
over the period with good earnings delivery and a positive re-rating as the growth opportunity in both the existing and new adjacent
verticals became more widely recognised.

The largest detractor to relative performance was Goodman Group, a commercial real estate business that specialises in logistic and
data centers. The management team was early to recognise changing trends in the industry and over the last decade has pivoted
away from retail, office and manufacturing real estate and towards areas seeing longer-term structural demand growth, notably prime
urban logistic warehousing (to support e-commerce) and cloud data centers. This foresight has led to strong subsequent shareholder
returns and it's been a long-term holding in the fund. Earnings growth continued over the last year, but valuation suffered from a
de-rating in response to rising interest rates, along with the broader real estate sector. Higher costs of capital present a headwind.
However, Goodman'’s strong balance sheet and exposure to verticals that continue to experience growing demand (with very high
utilisation and significant rent inflation) should help it navigate the higher rate environment. Meanwhile the long-term opportunity
remains very attractive.

Cleanaway Waste Management was also a detractor. It operates leading waste processing and recycling assets across Australia and
plays a key role in the country’s transition to a more circular economy. Margins saw near-term pressure, primarily from high inflation
in fuel and labour costs that were not fully passed on to customers due to a contractual timing lag. We view the recent headwinds as
transitory and anticipate a return to compounding earnings growth with low demand cyclicality.

We incorporate environmental, social and governance ("ESG") into our investment process. The Fund’s latest Morningstar
Sustainability rates the Fund as “Above Average” relative to the Australian and New Zealand peer group, whilst MSCI ESG rank the
fund “AA” as an “ESG Leader.” In addition to external ratings, we conduct our own proprietary carbon footprint analysis of the portfolio
relative to the benchmark. As of the end of April 2023, the Fund had a carbon footprint that was 34% less than the benchmark.

Market outlook

The Reserve Bank of Australia faces a challenge of bringing down inflation by raising interest rates without tipping the economy into
a recession. This is not unique to Australia and an issue other central banks also face. However, Australia does benefit from some
country specific factors that help make it a relative “safe-haven” in our view, and the IMF forecast GDP growth to exceed the average
of the G7 Advanced Economies over the next five years.

Notably, Australian government net debt/GDP is well below other developed economies across Europe and the US. The Treasury also
forecasts a budget surplus this year, also in sharp contrast to some other developed economies. We believe this provides leeway for
fiscal stimulus as a backstop if a recession does occur which should support domestic earnings.

BARINGS
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Australia Fund (continued)

Market outlook (continued)

Australia’s proximity to China, a major export partner, should also provide a tailwind to demand as China emerges from its recent
lockdowns. We also see some early signs that Australia reopening its border to immigration could help alleviate the labour market
tightness experienced over the last year. Meanwhile it’s rich natural resources (with relatively low political risk attached), and status
as a net exporter of energy further add to its attractiveness with respect to global supply chain security.

We have high conviction in the companies held in the Fund and it remains a concentrated portfolio, built from bottom-up stock selection.
As at the period end, the fund had 32 positions. These include some very attractively valued smaller cap Australian companies which
are not included in the performance comparator by virtue of their size.

One of these small-cap companies is Steadfast Group, a high-quality insurance broker with defensive earnings growth and share price
that does not, in our view, fully reflect the long-term value creation opportunity that the international monetisation of their client trading
technology platform could generate. Another small-cap holding is Johns Lyng Group, a building services business that specialises in
doing property repairs after insurable events (e.g. fires/floods). We like the non-discretionary and non-cyclical nature of demand for
its services, attractive contract terms that pass on cost inflation to the insurers thereby protecting gross margin, and their unique and
capital-light business model that is disrupting the market and delivering very rapid earnings growth - with a long runway to continue.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited
and Barings LLC,

appointed as Sub-Investment Managers by
Baring Asset Management Limited

May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.

23



Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Europa Fund

Performance

The Barings Europa Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of 8.80% on the Class A USD Inc unit class and underperformed
against the performance comparator, which returned 12.03%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of 6.94%
on the Class A USD Inc unit class.

European equities performed strongly over the period as the risk of a severe recession in Europe receded as energy prices declined
and economic data was generally less bad than feared. Nevertheless, despite the overall positive market returns, levels of uncertainty
remained high, resulting in market volatility as data also showed high inflation, in part as previously higher energy prices worked their
way through supply chains, which central banks responded to with a series of interest rate hikes.

Some of the portfolio’s strongest performers were in the Financials sector, including AXA and Julius Baer. Both have reported well
received results over the period, with insurance group AXA benefiting from strong execution as it continues to de-risk its business
model, which in turn has led to returns to shareholders of excess capital, whilst Julius Baer’s results have been supported by rising
interest rates.

Stock selection in the Energy sector also contributed positively to relative returns. TotalEnergies over performed the benchmark,
despite oil and natural gas prices falling back from the highs reached in the immediate aftermath of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, as
the group made continued progress through its energy transition programme via significant investments into renewable energy.

The portfolio’s underweight allocation to the Consumer Discretionary sector negatively impacted relative performance. We have
remained underweight due to not finding sufficient investment opportunities in stocks with Growth at a Reasonable Price investment
characteristics and because of some broader concerns over consumer spending trends in light of cost-of-living pressures. However,
we did invest in several good quality consumer-facing stocks towards the end of the period when we felt that valuations were more
than discounting the potential adverse scenarios.

In terms of companies held in the portfolio, Belgian telecoms group Telenet was a key underperformer, as good operational results
were at times offset by question marks over management’s longer term growth strategy, including with regard to its fibre network
investment plan and position of its controlling shareholder. Despite the strategic issues, we felt that Liberty at some point would seek
to buy-out minority shareholders, which proved to be the case. The Fund thus sold out from this position post a circa +40% rise in the
share price when the offer was made in late March.

Market outlook

2022 as a whole was a tumultuous year for many asset classes, including European equities, with the cross-currents of inflation, rising
interest rates, slowing growth, geopolitical tensions (punctuated by the Russia-Ukraine conflict), and the lingering effects of COVID-19
all roiling markets. Whilst some of these developments may be near to having run their course, others, such as the Russia/Ukraine
conflict, look set to continue.

Despite this challenging backdrop, equity markets begun 2023 well, largely on speculation that, while inflation rates remain high
relative to history, the peak rate may have passed and we may therefore be nearing the end of the interest rate tightening cycle. This
view is supported by the sharp retrenchment of energy prices and an easing of supply chain pressures as the effects from COVID-19
lockdowns recede. In turn, China’s sudden reversal of its zero tolerance COVID policy last autumn and subsequent efforts to bolster
the economy bode well for not only the world’s second largest economy, but the global economy as well.
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Barings Europa Fund (continued)

Market outlook (continued)

In terms of what this means for the Fund, we will continue to monitor how companies are navigating what are undoubtedly very difficult
trading conditions, but our approach remains unchanged. We invest in what we perceive to be higher quality companies that can
withstand the gyrations of the global economy better than most and which are still valued attractively, with an aim to holding these
investments over the longer term.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings Hong Kong China Fund

Performance

Barings Hong Kong China Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -12.29% on the Class AUSD Inc unit class and underperformed
against the performance comparator with a return of -5.31%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -13.78%
on the Class A USD Inc unit class.

Chinese equities came under pressure particularly in the first half of the review period, largely dragged by sporadic COVID-19
outbreaks and lockdowns, weak property market condition, as well as elevated geopolitical tensions and challenging external macro
headwinds amid the global monetary tightening cycle. Market later staged a strong rebound, driven by a series of COVID-19 policy
relaxations and strong economic recoveries post reopening.

Stock selection was the major detractor to relative performance of the Fund over the review period, particularly in Information
Technology and Industrials in light of tech industry down-cycle and cyclical growth pressure due to COVID-19 drags respectively. On
the flipside, stock selection in Energy and Consumer Staples contributed notably to the Fund over the 12-month period.

At a company level, the Fund’s relatively negative exposure versus the performance comparator in e-commerce platform PDD ended
as a notable detractor to relative performance over the review period, as share price was underpinned by better-than-expected
earnings results as well as improving sales outlook post COVID-19 reopening. On the other hand, energy conglomerate PetroChina
was a key contributor to the Fund, thanks to improving demand outlook post reopening as well as the new round of SOE (state-owned
enterprise) reforms that could result in further re-rating of the company.

Market outlook

After China reopened its economy from COVID-19, consumer sentiment and income expectations have continued to recover, albeit
uneven developments among consumer sub-sectors have also been observed. Looking forward, we expect fundamentals of Chinese
companies to sequentially improve in the coming quarters on the back of recovering consumption and supportive policies, helped by
a lower base due to the depressed earnings starting in the second quarter last year from Shanghai’'s COVID-19 outbreak. Corporate
profit margins could also benefit from the moderate inflation levels and deflating input costs. Meanwhile, the Chinese government
stressed the importance of economic stability in 2023, as well as policies to stimulate domestic demand and investment, reform
and innovation, and risk prevention. The policymakers are also committed to shifting focus towards high-quality development and
improve science and technology to achieve self-sufficiency, which should support healthcare and information technology sectors
where research and development are key to building competitiveness.

Externally, while demand from developed markets remains weak, market outlook on hawkish interest rates have begun to ease as
global inflation continues to moderate, as well as to prevent liquidity risk in the banking sector. While the market could still experience
some volatilities in the short run, both investors and companies are shifting their focus towards fundamentals. Valuations remain at
attractive levels given the strong outlook this year. China’s delay in reopening its borders in 2022 could mean deferring its growth to
2023, representing favourable opportunity for market entry.
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Barings Hong Kong China Fund (continued)

Market outlook (continued)

We remain constructive on Chinese equities driven by bottom-up fundamentals. Overall speaking, we are more positive on the
domestic economy than overseas/export demand in the coming quarters, largely due to the weaker/recessionary outlook in the US
and Europe. As the economy gradually normalises, structural trends such as sustainable growth, self-sufficiency in the supply chain,
scientific and technological innovations, and environmental awareness, would continue to unfold. This should bolster the outlook on
sectors and themes such as new infrastructure, domestic consumption, health care, technology localisation and sustainability in the
medium to longer term.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited
and Barings LLC,

appointed as Sub-Investment Managers by
Baring Asset Management Limited

May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.

27



Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Global Bond Fund

Performance

The Barings Global Bond Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -3.93% on the Class AUSD Inc unit class and underperformed
its performance comparator with a return of -3.51%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -5.09% on the
Class A USD Inc unit class.

This should be viewed in context of a challenging year for bond markets, where yields have been quite volatile on growth and inflation
uncertainties, aggressive central bank’s hiking cycles and macro-economic risks emanating from geopolitics (Russia-Ukraine war,
US-China trade tensions, etc.) and US bank failures. The latter now seems to have been resolved.

The Investment Manager took profits on long duration positions during the reporting year. They are looking for favourable entry levels
to re-position for bond market over performance. Core investment views have not changed.

The Fund is overweight Europe (core and periphery), Australia (including via regional governments), New Zealand, and Canada
(including provincials). It has a small underweight in the US, predominantly to express the Investment Managers’ bearish USD view.
On currencies, the fund is modestly long major currencies such as the Euro and Sterling.

Market outlook

The global macro-economic outlook is mixed and highly uncertain. Our base case is still for a significant slowdown in global economic
growth. Hence, the Investment Manager remains positive on bonds in developed markets, considering the following:

a) Major central banks have delivered one of the biggest and fastest monetary tightenings in history, especially in the inflation
targeting era. That is yet to transmit into lower private consumption. Investors are debating whether the speed of monetary policy
transmission mechanism into the real economy has changed since the drag to consumption is yet to be felt;

b) Inflation has peaked, but core inflation is falling slower than central banks are comfortable with. As such, it is no surprise that
most major central banks have maintained a tightening stance;

c) The energy shock induced by the Russia-Ukraine war has abated. Oil and Natural Gas prices have fallen, terms of trade
have improved for importers, and consumers are seeing the reprieve. Consequently, growth expectations have been revised higher
across all major economies, but remain below trend;

d) China, Europe and the US economies are slowing down, but to various degrees. Markets continue to debate the likelihood
(or not) of a recession. As we know, recessions are incredibly hard to forecast. Our conviction is that the global economy is going
through a significant slowdown.

e) Most growth-related assets continue to signal global economic growth slowdown fears, but not recession.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Barings LLC and Barings Japan Limited
appointed as Sub-Investment Managers by
Baring Asset Management Limited

June 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings Global Balanced Fund

Performance

Barings Global Balanced Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -9.55% on the Class A USD Inc unit class and underperformed
the performance comparator that delivered a return of -0.72%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -10.86%
on the Class A USD Inc unit class.

Overall, the Fund’s defensive position has led to a weaker rebound than the market in the face of meaningful market swings. In
particular, several short-lived upswings seen in Chinese equities throughout the period have widened the Fund’s negative relative
performance. During the period, China grappled with the adverse economic impact from its COVID-19 situation. Months of stringent
measures and lockdown dampened market sentiments despite the government’s stimulus policies, exacerbated by the straining US-
China tension and the property sector downturn. Our cautious take on the region has dragged on the Fund’s relative performance
when the market rallied rapidly over the government’s decisive exit from zero-COVID policy. As the economy reopened, we added
exposure to the Chinese market given the improving outlook and divergence of People's Bank of China’s policy with the rest of the
world. We are now watching closely for more signs that these policies act as a catalyst for a sustainable earnings recovery.

In the developed markets, elevated levels of volatility were apparent earlier in the period as negative market sentiments overshadowed
fundamentals given the decades-high inflation and aggressive tightening in most major markets against the unfavourable geopolitical
backdrop. The Fed, ECB, and other central banks continued to hike rates more rapidly than initially anticipated. Equity markets saw
significant drawdown driven by price-earnings multiples derating while global bonds also saw notable losses. We lowered the Fund’s
equity exposure and shortened duration in our fixed income exposure to navigate through the volatile market. Within equity, our added
position in Energy helped the Fund’s performance as the sector was favoured by the tight supply resulting from Russia’s halt of energy
supply to Europe. Overall, our currency management also contributed positively to the portfolio as we reduced non-USD denominated
assets in light of the USD strength.

Market sentiment started to stabilise later in the period as several inflation drivers showed signs of easing. Given the lower energy
prices and base effect, the downtrend of headline inflation gave room for the Fed’s tightening to slow or potentially take a pause.
Interest rate sensitive assets that were hard hit by the aggressive tightening saw a sizeable rebound, namely Information Technology
and Consumer Discretionary sectors. In early 2023, market sentiment saw positive momentum despite bank stress as the economic
picture turned out to be more resilient than feared, as shown in both earnings and employment data. The uptick in European equities
were stronger than its US counterpart as the economy saw relief from intense worries over energy costs. Our defensive position in the
US and cautious take on European equities later did not help the Fund to fully capture the markets’ rebound. Nonetheless, our lower
exposure to Financials has helped the Fund avoid significant volatilities amid high uncertainties in the banking sector.

Market outlook

Behind the recent positive performance, market sentiment could still be on a fragile ground as investors stay very sensitive to the
inflation trend and assess the lagged impact of the aggressive tightening by Central Banks.

The Fed raised rates by another 25 bps in May despite the US banking turmoil and will likely let the incoming data guide its next move.
Therefore, the CPI prints in the upcoming months will be critical to the Fed’s decision on interest rates. The Fed could take a pause in
rate hike in the coming month to let policy run its course after an aggressive series of tightening. Going forward, if inflation surprises
to the downside, interest rate sensitive and long duration assets could see support over the medium term.

Compared to the west, Chinese equities could appear appealing given its position in the economic cycle and its room for easing
policy. Nonetheless, more signs of the improving economic fundamentals translating into sustainable earnings recovery are needed
for market momentum to pick up.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within

the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.

BARINGS
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Barings Global Technology Equity Fund

Performance

The Barings Global Technology Equity Fund (the “Fund”) generated a gross return of -2.77% on the Class A USD Acc unit class and
underperformed against the performance comparator, which returned 2.54%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net
return of -4.67% on the Class A USD Acc unit class.

Relative underperformance was confined largely to the first half of the reporting period (May to Oct 2022) when the technology sector
and equity markets globally were markedly weaker in response to concerns regarding slowing economic growth, high inflation and
rising interest rates. This was compounded for a number of areas where companies were reporting growth comparisons to a very high
base caused by accelerated technology spending during COVID-19 the year before.

In this environment higher growth companies were amongst the weakest performers, as valuations reflected the impact higher
interest rates would have on the discounting of future cash flows. As a result some of the portfolio’s holdings in the Software segment
were amongst the weakest performers, with companies such as Varonis and Datadog both detracting from relative performance
despite reporting earnings that were solid and in some quarters beat analysts expectations.

As we moved into the second half of the reporting period the technology sector rallied on speculation that rates might be peaking and
that the economic slowdown would be better than originally feared, helped in part by the reopening of the Chinese economy following
the relaxation of zero-COVID measures.

In this environment share prices were more responsive to company fundamentals than had been the case previously and the Fund
over performed the benchmark from December to the end of April. The holding in Meta Platforms was one of the best performers,
helped by good customer engagement metrics and a sharp focus on efficiency savings from management. Similarly, the portfolio also
benefitted from the strong performance of a number of semiconductor companies, as strong earnings momentum across holdings
such as ASM International and ASML Holding has been underpinned by high demand that continues to outstrip supply. Unfortunately
the strong perfornace recovery in the second half of the period was not enough offset earlier weakness.

Market outlook

The fundamentals of many of the structural growth themes that we have liked for some time, such as public cloud growth, digital
commerce and software as a service, continue to look very appealing. More recently the emergence of Generative Artificial Intelligence
has sparked additional optimism that, even in the face of uncertain macroeconomic conditions, the near term demand environment in
technology may more closely line up with these longer term secular trends. In many cases, recent share price volatility has created
attractive entry points for businesses with the potential to exhibit strong, sustainable growth and investment returns over the long term.

While the current market environment is challenging, our investment approach remains unchanged. We continue to believe that
companies which can best navigate the secular growth trends in technology, as disruptors, innovators or enablers offer great
investment returns potential over the long term.

We will continue our process of building new or adding to existing positions in companies with strong and sustainable business
franchises where our proprietary bottom-up research has identified a significant degree of undervaluation relative to their future
growth potential.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.

30



Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Europe Select Fund

Performance

The Barings Europe Select Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022. The
Fund’s previous track record with the inception date as at 8 February 2019 has been continued.

The Fund generated a gross return of -1.77% on the Class J EUR Inc unit class and over performed the performance comparator,
which returned -4.72%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -2.56% on the J EUR Inc unit class.

The Fund’s top contributor to relative performance over the period was the European commercial laundry service company Elis, which
over performed as a rebound in demand from the hospitality sector has driven strong earnings recovery, while recent M&A in Latin
America has also proved successful.

Other significant positive contributors to relative returns included French advertising agency Publicis Groupe as recent earnings
reports have been strong, with margins rising and organic growth benefiting from customer wins and growth in new services.

The Fund also benefitted from very minimal exposure to the Real Estate sector, which markedly underperformed reflecting the
sector’s sensitivity to rising interest rates.

These strong performances were partially offset by positioning in the Financial sector. This was not caused by any major stock specific
weakness but was attributable to recent smaller relative underperformance spanning a number of individual holdings.

Beyond the Financials sector the largest detractor to performance was lItalian utility company Hera, reflecting uncertainty regarding
potential changing regulatory policies concerning allowable returns on regulated assets which could pressure short term earnings
forecasts.

Market outlook

Equity markets are likely to remain volatile over the coming months as the path for inflation and interest rates remains uncertain.
Whilst the risk of recessions across developed economies remains elevated, presenting challenges for corporate profit growth in
2023.

Despite this challenging backdrop, equity markets begun the year with further share price rises, largely on speculation that, while
inflation rates remain high, the peak rate of price growth may have passed and therefore, central banks may raise interest rates
less dramatically this year than had previously been feared. This view is supported by the sharp retrenchment of energy prices and
improvements to business activity surveys. Secondly, China’s dramatic reversal of its zero tolerance COVID policy and efforts to
support the economy has encouraged forecasters to revise up assessments of Chinese GDP growth in 2023, which in turn will have
a positive impact on the global economy.

In this context, our Growth at a Reasonable Price approach remains unchanged, focusing on reasonably valued companies whose
profit growth potential is demonstrably improving. Following the recent over performance of Value style equities, and underperformance
by Growth companies, valuation dispersion has declined across sectors. Earnings revisions, and individual companies’ commentaries
on their specific growth prospects, should increasingly determine share price performance.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings German Growth Fund

Performance

The Barings German Growth Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.
The Fund’s previous track record with the inception date as at 8 February 2019 has been continued.

The Fund generated a gross return of 8.72% on the Class J EUR Acc unit class and underperformed its performance comparator,
which returned 10.44%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of 7.82% on the Class J EUR Acc unit class.

Over the course of the twelve-month time period, value style equities over performed Growth peers (as measured by the MSCI
Germany Growth and Value indices). As well as this companies experiencing positive earnings revisions - which we seek to own in
the portfolio - have also been amongst the weakest performers over recent months, despite their earnings prospects improving. These
are two significant factors behind the Fund underperforming the benchmark in the period.

Stock selection in the Information Technology sector had the largest negative impact on relative performance over the period. The
holding in Information Technology services company Allgeier was one of the weakest performers despite any negative company-
specific news. We continue to believe this is a high-quality business that offers strong growth potential over the medium term and are
happy to hold the position.

In contrast, stock selection in the Financial sector contributed positively to relative returns. Commerzbank was one of the best
performers, reflecting strong quarterly earnings, with the company benefitting from the rising interest rate environment. The Fund’s
position in Insurance company Hannover Re likewise benefitted fund performance.

With regards sector allocation, a lack of exposure to the Real Estate sector also improved relative returns, after the sector significantly
underperformed in response to concerns regarding rising interest rates and the increased cost of mortgage debt.

Market outlook

Equity markets are likely to remain volatile over the coming months as the path for inflation and interest rates remains uncertain. The
risk of recessions across developed economies remains elevated, presenting challenges for corporate profit growth in 2023.

Despite this challenging backdrop, equity markets begun the year with further share price rises, supported by the sharp retrenchment
of energy prices and the reopening of the Chinese economy as zero-COVID policies are relaxed.

Economic data releases have been mixed but less weak than might have been expected by most strategists nine months ago.
Surveys of business confidence have improved from low levels and inflation rates, while well above central banks’ target levels, have
stabilised, reflecting slower than anticipated wage growth and the significant retrenchments in energy prices.

Monetary policy may need to tighten further to combat high inflation rates, but central banks’ rhetoric is starting to presage potential
peaking in rates later this year. In this context, global economic growth forecasts have generally been marginally upgraded.

The economic backdrop is, therefore, better than had been assumed a year ago, although companies in developed markets are still
forecast to see limited earnings per share growth in 2023.

We are mindful that equity markets and the global economy continue to face significant headwinds despite recent share price gains,
and it is possible that the market will sell-off again in the future. In this context, the portfolio remains defensively positioned in
businesses that are less economically sensitive and where cash flows are likely to be more resilient in a downturn.
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Barings German Growth Fund (continued)

Market outlook (continued)
We will continue our process of investing in companies with strong and sustainable business franchises where our proprietary bottom-
up research has identified that the shares are mispriced today relative to future growth potential.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund

Performance

The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 7
October 2022. The Fund’s previous track record with the inception date as at 20 October 2016 has been continued.

The Fund generated a gross return of 7.17% on the Class A USD Acc unit class and over performed the performance comparator,
which returned 3.18%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of 5.44% on the Class A USD Acc unit class.

Stock selection in the Consumer Staples and Consumer Discretionary sectors was the main driver behind the Fund over performing
the benchmark over the period. The Fund has a significant overweight to staples companies, many of which have proven to be
resilient amidst the tougher economic environment. Therein, Unilever was the best performing holding over the period, with the
company’s revenues holding up well despite economic uncertainties as management raised prices to compensate for higher costs.
The ability of Unilever to pass on these price rises to its customers demonstrates the fundamental pricing power and strength of its
market leading brands.

Away from these sectors there were also positive contributions from some of the Healthcare holdings. Danish pharmaceutical
company Novo Nordisk was one of the strongest performers, reflecting the growing demand for its high-quality specialist diabetes
treatment and weight loss drugs.

In contrast, stock selection in the Industrials sector contributed negatively to relative returns, with the Fund’s largest detractor over the
period being Stanley Black & Decker. This was mainly due to disappointing results which highlighted slowing end-market demand for
the company’s tools and equipment, as well as rising cost pressures. This holding was sold over the period.

Market outlook

2022 as a whole was a tumultuous year for many asset classes, including global equities, with the cross-currents of inflation, rising
interest rates, slowing growth, geopolitical tensions (punctuated by the Russia-Ukraine conflict), and the lingering effects of COVID-19
all roiling markets. Whilst some of these developments may be near to having run their course, others, such as the Russia/Ukraine
conflict, look set to continue.

Despite this challenging backdrop, equity markets have begun 2023 well, largely on speculation that, while inflation rates remain high
relative to history, the peak rate may have passed and we may therefore be nearing the end of the interest rate tightening cycle. This
view is supported by the sharp retrenchment of energy prices and an easing of supply chain pressures as the effects from COVID-19
lockdowns recede. In turn, China’s sudden reversal of its zero tolerance COVID policy last autumn and subsequent efforts to bolster
the economy bode well for not only the world’s second largest economy, but the global economy as well.

In terms of what this means for the Fund, we will continue to monitor how companies are navigating what are undoubtedly very difficult
trading conditions, but our approach remains unchanged. We invest in what we perceive to be higher quality companies that can
withstand the gyrations of the global economy better than most and which are still valued attractively, with an aim to holding these
investments over the longer term.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings China A-Share Fund

Performance

The Barings China A-Share Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.
The Fund’s previous track record with the inception date as at 6 February 2020 has been continued.

The Fund generated a gross return of -11.32% on the A USD Acc unit class and underperformed against the performance comparator
with a return of -1.28%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -13.08% on the A USD Acc unit class.

Chinese onshore equities came under pressure particularly in the first half of the review period, largely dragged by sporadic COVID-19
outbreaks and lockdowns, weak property market condition, as well as elevated geopolitical tensions and challenging external macro
headwinds amid global interest rate hike cycle. Market later staged a strong rebound, driven by a series of COVID-19 policy relaxations
and strong economic recoveries post reopening.

Stock selection was the major detractor to relative performance of the Fund over the review period, particularly in Information
Technology and Materials in light of tech industry down-cycle and demand slowdown amid economic weakness respectively. On the
flipside, stock selection in Energy and the Fund’s positive exposure versus the performance comparator in Communication Services
contributed notably to the Fund over the 12-month period.

At a company level, CRDMO (Contract Research, Development and Manufacturing Organisation) leader WuXi AppTec ended as a
notable detractor to relative performance over the review period, largely weighed by tightening global liquidity alongside re-elevated
geopolitical uncertainties between China and the US that dampened investor sentiment. On the other hand, energy conglomerate
PetroChina was a key contributor to the Fund, thanks to improving demand outlook post reopening as well as the new round of SOE
(state-owned enterprise) reforms that could result in further re-rating of the company.

Market outlook

After China reopened its economy from COVID-19, consumer sentiment and income expectations have continued to recover, albeit
uneven developments among consumer sub-sectors have also been observed. Looking forward, we expect fundamentals of Chinese
companies to sequentially improve in the coming quarters on the back of recovering consumption and supportive policies, helped by
a lower base due to the depressed earnings starting in the second quarter last year from Shanghai’'s COVID-19 outbreak. Corporate
profit margins could also benefit from the moderate inflation levels and deflating input costs. Meanwhile, the Chinese government
stressed the importance of economic stability in 2023, as well as policies to stimulate domestic demand and investment, reform
and innovation, and risk prevention. The policymakers are also committed to shifting focus towards high-quality development and
improve science and technology to achieve self-sufficiency, which should support healthcare and information technology sectors
where research and development are key to building competitiveness.

Externally, while demand from developed markets remains weak, market outlook on hawkish interest rates have begun to ease as
global inflation continues to moderate, as well as to prevent liquidity risk in the banking sector. While the market could still experience
some volatilities in the short run, both investors and companies are shifting their focus towards fundamentals. Valuations remain at
attractive levels given the strong outlook this year. China’s delay in reopening its borders in 2022 could mean deferring its growth to
2023, representing favourable opportunity for market entry.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Investment Managers’ Report (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings China A-Share Fund (continued)

Market outlook (continued)

We remain constructive on Chinese equities driven by bottom-up fundamentals. Overall speaking, we are more positive on the
domestic economy than overseas/export demand in the coming quarters, largely due to the weaker/recessionary outlook in the US
and Europe. As the economy gradually normalises, structural trends such as sustainable growth, self-sufficiency in the supply chain,
scientific and technological innovations, and environmental awareness, would continue to unfold. This should bolster the outlook on
sectors and themes such as new infrastructure, domestic consumption, health care, technology localisation and sustainability in the
medium to longer term.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited,
appointed as Sub-Investment Managers by
Baring Asset Management Limited

May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund

Performance

The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund (the “Fund”) merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 18 November
2022. The Fund’s previous track record with the inception date as at 28 June 2019 has been continued.

The Fund generated a gross return of -0.69% on the Class | USD Acc unit class and underperformed against the performance
comparator with a return of 2.06%* during the reporting year. The Fund generated a net return of -1.46% on the Class | USD Acc unit
class.

At the sector level, positions in the energy and healthcare sectors, and underweight positions to Consumer Discretionary and Real
Estate were the largest contributors to relative performance. However, the Fund’s underweight position in both the Industrials and
Consumer Staples sectors detracted from relative returns.

At the regional level, the largest contribution to performance came from the overweight position to the US market, with US energy
and healthcare companies offering particularly strong contributions. On the negative side, the overweight position to Emerging Market
equities was a notable detractor from performance.

Market outlook

2023 has so far started on a much stronger footing than 2022. Economies are proving resilient despite rising interest rates and thus
far, a recession has been avoided, particularly in the Eurozone where falling gas prices have alleviated near term fears of a serious
pullback.

However, we think the force of monetary tightening we’ve seen in the past year is yet to be fully felt by the economy, and higher
rates will eventually tip the economy into a recession. But a recession may take time to appear. Labour markets are still very tight,
contributing to sticky services inflation and goods prices are not falling fast enough. For as long as growth does not collapse, this will
force the hand of central banks, keeping rates high until something breaks.

The many headwinds facing the global economy have set up a tough environment for risk assets to perform. Equities will bear the
brunt of slower growth. Profit margins have further to fall, as companies shift strategy from increasing prices to that of protecting
market share, absorbing more of the rising costs rather than passing them on to consumers. And valuations are pricing in an optimistic
outcome, in what to us represents a divergence from the fundamentals.

Within the portfolio, we keep with a broadly defensive stance. At the country level we have reduced Emerging Markets, lowering the
conviction on our overweight. At the sector level, we neutralise consumer discretionary as the sector has cheapened, and the macro
weak consumer story has not yet materialised. We downgrade Energy, despite the structural supply shortage in oil, as we think in the
near term the macro headwinds of demand will be a bigger driver. Tactically, we take profit on our underweights to both Financials and
Real Estate after a bout of underperformance.

* The Fund return uses the midday prices, whereas the return of the comparator is calculated using global close prices.

Baring Asset Management Limited
May 2023

Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) gives its portfolio managers full authority to manage their Funds as they see fit, within
the established guidelines set down. This includes the views that managers may take of the markets and sectors they invest in, which may differ from
the views of other Barings portfolio managers.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 April 2023

Barings ASEAN Barings Asia Barings Australia
Frontiers Fund Growth Fund Fund
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
Assets Notes US$ Uss$ uss$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 458,282,752 136,006,264 63,745,540
Cash and cash equivalents 3 20,853,185 1,773,108 2,087,484
Securities sold receivable 2 3,354,626 6,438,226 425,241
Receivable for units sold 2 222,674 35,211 32,053
Interest receivable 2 16,502 7,587 2,368
Dividends receivable 2 480,675 121,287 -
Other assets 401 1,228 —
Total assets 483,210,815 144,382,911 66,292,686
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2 (14,505) (655) -
Management fee payable 6 (789,064) (257,705) (122,882)
Administration, depositary & operating fees payable 6 (278,450) (100,842) (43,839)
Securities purchased payable 2 (1,447,606) (6,069,872) (208,918)
Accrued capital gains tax - (137,050) -
Payable for units redeemed 2 (3,018,174) (705,528) (62,171)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating units) (5,547,799) (7,271,652) (437,810)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units 477,663,016 137,111,259 65,854,876

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 April 2023

Barings Europa Barings Hong Barings Global
Fund Kong China Fund Bond Fund
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
Assets Notes US$ Uss$ uss$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 25,056,986 1,250,327,761 51,813,931
Cash and cash equivalents 3 159,223 29,389,842 763,231
Margin cash 3 - - 151,003
Securities sold receivable 2 - 102,803,598 —
Receivable for units sold 2 9,096 789,659 723,027
Interest receivable 2 - 26,943 371,173
Dividends receivable 2 76,098 - -
Other assets 75 5,106 -
Total assets 25,301,478 1,383,342,909 53,822,365
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2 - (112) (164,256)
Management fee payable 6 (49,438) (2,645,745) (62,958)
Administration, depositary & operating fees payable 6 (18,278) (960,962) (37,645)
Securities purchased payable 2 - (111,397,395) -
Payable for units redeemed 2 (39,329) (795,145) (20,998)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating units) (107,045) (115,799,359) (285,857)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units 25,194,433 1,267,543,550 53,536,508

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 April 2023

Barings Global

Barings Global Technology Barings Europe
Balanced Fund Equity Fund Select Fund*
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023

Assets Notes Us$ Us$ €
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 61,157,869 5,358,046 48,892,020
Cash and cash equivalents 3 1,833,452 249,553 2,312,245
Margin cash 3 738,203 - —
Securities sold receivable 2 1,386,079 - —
Receivable for units sold 2 3,593 33,385 56
Interest receivable 2 415,559 446 1,057
Dividends receivable 2 9,246 467 173,680
Total assets 65,544,001 5,641,897 51,379,058
Liabilities
Management fee payable 6 (102,511) (6,951) (98,007)
Administration, depositary & operating fees payable 6 (46,132) (11,281) (4,175)
Securities purchased payable 2 (1,411,723) - -
Payable for units redeemed 2 (35,039) - -
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating units) (1,595,405) (18,232) (102,182)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units 63,948,596 5,623,665 51,276,876

* The Barings Europe Select Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 April 2023

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Interest receivable

Dividends receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Management fee payable

Administration, depositary & operating fees payable
Payable for units redeemed

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating units)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units

Notes

NN W

(e}

Barings Global

Dividend

Barings German Champions Barings China
Growth Fund* Fund**  A-Share Fund***
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
€ Us$ Us$

22,785,407 24,667,112 8,485,125
86,938 984,710 162,061

271 1,214 126

568 29,242 -
22,873,184 25,682,278 8,647,312
(53,659) (2,190) (71)
(2,167) (3,882) (3,605)

(2,520) - -
(58,346) (6,072) (3,676)
22,814,838 25,676,206 8,643,636

* The Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.
** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.
*** The Barings China A-Share Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)
As at 30 April 2023

Barings Global
Equity Allocation

Fund*

30 April 2023
Assets Notes Us$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 55,639,291
Cash and cash equivalents 3 279,097
Securities sold receivable 2 1,223
Interest receivable 2 328
Dividends receivable 2 80,531
Other assets 6,309
Total assets 56,006,779
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2 (20,874)
Management fee payable 6 (1)
Administration, depositary & operating fees payable 6 (21,910)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating units) (42,785)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units 55,963,994

* The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 April 2022

Barings ASEAN Barings Asia Barings Australia
Frontiers Fund Growth Fund Fund
30 April 2022 30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Assets Notes US$ Uss$ uss$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 520,614,833 175,995,405 67,342,466
Cash and cash equivalents 3 20,685,190 8,648,331 1,496,876
Securities sold receivable 2 5,771,278 224,003 -
Receivable for units sold 2 1,558,206 18,905 117,095
Dividends receivable 2 1,420,825 270,756 -
Other assets 8,001 712 -
Total assets 550,058,333 185,158,112 68,956,437
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2 (438,110) (552,389) -
Management fee payable 6 (909,994) (352,853) (109,617)
Administration, depositary & operating fees payable 6 (324,857) (126,468) (39,407)
Securities purchased payable 2 (15,200,769) (3,503,331) -
Accrued capital gains tax - (571,142) -
Payable for units redeemed 2 (425,914) (125,645) (45,174)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares) (17,299,644) (5,231,828) (194,198)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units 532,758,689 179,926,284 68,762,239

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 April 2022

Barings Europa Barings Hong Barings Global
Fund Kong China Fund Bond Fund
30 April 2022 30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Assets Notes US$ Uss$ uss$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 25,217,975 1,503,464,838 56,885,322
Cash and cash equivalents 3 342,109 8,672,996 463,540
Margin cash 3 - - 276,496
Securities sold receivable 2 - 7,210,224 —
Receivable for units sold 2 2,313 620,161 44,734
Interest receivable 2 - - 370,374
Dividends receivable 2 58,457 2,098,170 -
Other assets 2 958 -
Total assets 25,620,856 1,522,067,347 58,040,466
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2 - (595) (467,255)
Management fee payable 6 (54,212) (3,178,671) (74,470)
Administration, depositary & operating fees payable 6 (20,053) (1,145,425) (44,518)
Payable for units redeemed 2 (7,436) (1,439,169) (223,193)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares) (81,701) (5,763,860) (809,436)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units 25,539,155 1,516,303,487 57,231,030

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

As at 30 April 2022

Assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash

Receivable for units sold

Interest receivable

Dividends receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Management fee payable

Administration, depositary & operating fees payable
Payable for units redeemed

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable
to holders of redeemable participating shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units

Notes

NDNDNDWWN

N O ON

Barings Global

Barings Global Technology
Balanced Fund* Equity Fund**
30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Us$ Us$
73,586,933 5,346,937
1,369,434 221,934
309,909 -

2,766 -

240,019 -

45,705 -
75,554,766 5,568,871
(372,282) -
(130,928) (7,271)
(59,348) (5,453)
(33,685) -
(596,243) (12,724)
74,958,523 5,556,147

* Barings Global Balanced Fund launched on 5 November 2021 and on launch date, Barings Asia Balanced Fund, a Sub-Fund of Barings Global

Opportunities Umbrella Fund merged into the new Fund.

** Barings Global Technology Equity Fund launched on 16 November 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Income
Bank interest income
Dividend income

Net fair value loss on financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Total expense

Expenses

Management fees

Administration, depositary & operating fees
General expenses

Total operating expenses

Net loss before finance costs and taxation

Finance costs
Distributions

Bank interest expense
Total finance costs

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation

Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Capital gains tax

Total taxation

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Notes

NN

(e}

Barings ASEAN Barings Asia Barings Australia
Frontiers Fund Growth Fund Fund
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
Us$ Us$ Uss$

137,388 47,223 27,934
13,170,313 3,088,919 3,384,439
(30,300,629) (24,074,033) (7,177,801)
(16,992,928) (20,937,891) (3,765,428)
(4,761,756) (1,674,246) (747,618)
(1,677,618) (596,632) (267,450)
(9,994) (4,034) (3,250)
(6,449,368) (2,274,912) (1,018,318)
(23,442,296) (23,212,803) (4,783,746)
(1,651,643) - (1,286,690)
(5,893) (3,593) (12,264)
(1,657,536) (3,593) (1,298,954)
(25,099,832) (23,216,396) (6,082,700)
(1,227,652) (352,584) (806,602)

- 327,695 -
(1,227,652) (24,889) (806,602)
(26,327,484) (23,241,285) (6,889,302)

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Income

Bank interest income
Interest income
Dividend income

Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Total income/(expense)

Expenses

Management fees

Administration, depositary & operating fees
General expenses

Total operating expenses

Net profit/(loss) before finance costs and taxation

Finance costs
Distributions

Bank interest expense
Total finance costs

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Total taxation

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders

of redeemable participating units

Notes

N

(o2}

Barings Europa

Barings Hong

Barings Global

Fund Kong China Fund Bond Fund

30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
uss$ us$ uss$

655 305,341 26,328

- - 1,477,413
814,685 29,839,520 -
1,648,889 (219,722,280) (3,351,281)
2,464,229 (189,577,419) (1,847,540)
(289,0595) (17,054,272) (377,440)
(104,060) (6,132,970) (225,641)
(6,000) (18,470) (3,250)
(399,115) (23,205,712) (606,331)
2,065,114 (212,783,131) (2,453,871)
(228,571) - (160,668)
(1,550) (19,471) (11,619)
(230,121) (19,471) (172,287)
1,834,993 (212,802,602) (2,626,158)
(102,360) (1,469,922) (13,475)
(102,360) (1,469,922) (13,475)
1,732,633 (214,272,524) (2,639,633)

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Notes
Income
Bank interest income 2
Interest income 2
Dividend income 2
Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 2
Total (expense)/income
Expenses
Management fees 6
Administration, depositary & operating fees 6
General expenses 6
Total operating expenses
Net (loss)/profit before finance costs and taxation
Finance costs
Distributions 5
Bank interest expense 2

Total finance costs

(Decrease)l/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Total taxation

(Decrease)l/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating units

Barings Global

Barings Global Technology Barings Europe
Balanced Fund Equity Fund Select Fund*
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
uss$ uss$ €

76,354 2,539 12,843
945,336 - -
644,081 32,516 594,435
(7,408,698) (28,061) 7,270,366
(5,742,927) 6,994 7,877,644
(667,017) (40,291) (315,002)
(298,895) (15,099) (13,316)
(639) (9,231) (7,109)
(966,551) (64,621) (335,427)
(6,709,478) (57,627) 7,542,217
(43,228) - -
(22,775) (25) (4,666)
(66,003) (25) (4,666)
(6,775,481) (57,652) 7,537,551
(106,847) (7,939) (96,583)
(106,847) (7,939) (96,583)
(6,882,328) (65,591) 7,440,968

* The Barings Europe Select Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Notes
Income
Bank interest income 2
Dividend income 2
Net fair value gain on financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss 2
Total income
Expenses
Management fees 6
Administration, depositary & operating fees 6
General expenses 6
Total operating expenses
Net profit before finance costs and taxation
Finance costs
Distributions 5
Bank interest expense 2

Total finance costs

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Total taxation

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Barings Global

Dividend

Barings German Champions Barings China
Growth Fund* Fund**  A-Share Fund***
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
€ Us$ Uss$

2,501 5,244 894
113,677 356,671 16,130
4,516,599 5,250,809 241,378
4,632,777 5,612,724 258,402
(170,062) (7,362) (196)
(6,865) (12,710) (9,971)
(2,977) (3,706) (3,250)
(179,904) (23,778) (13,417)
4,452,873 5,588,946 244,985

- (150) -
(74) (217) (81)
(74) (367) (81)
4,452,799 5,588,579 244,904
(13,556) (53,745) (1,492)
(13,556) (53,745) (1,492)
4,439,243 5,534,834 243,412

* The Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.
** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.
*** The Barings China A-Share Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Income

Bank interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Total income

Expenses

Management fees

Administration, depositary & operating fees
General expenses

Total operating expenses

Net profit before finance costs and taxation

Finance costs
Bank interest expense
Total finance costs

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Total taxation

Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units

Barings Global

Equity Allocation

Fund*

30 April 2023

Notes Us$

2 9,155

599,710
2,845,763
3,454,628

NN

6 3)
(53,153)

(3,250)
(56,406)

[e>MNe)]

3,398,222

2 (7,449)
(7,449)

3,390,773

(114,071)
(114,071)

3,276,702

* The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2022

Income
Bank interest income
Dividend income

Net fair value loss on financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Total (expense)/income

Expenses

Management fees

Administration, depositary & operating fees
General expenses

Total operating expenses

Net (loss)/profit before finance costs and taxation

Finance costs
Distributions

Bank interest expense
Total finance costs

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation

Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Capital gains tax

Total taxation

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Notes

N

(e}

Barings ASEAN Barings Asia Barings Australia
Frontiers Fund Growth Fund Fund
30 April 2022 30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Us$ Us$ Uss$
4,020 967 952
13,124,610 3,686,689 3,382,721
(34,163,455) (66,825,052) (1,568,623)
(21,034,825) (63,137,396) 1,815,050
(5,505,169) (2,573,589) (739,311)
(1,941,353) (919,281) (261,988)
(6,500) (6,500) (6,500)
(7,453,022) (3,499,370) (1,007,799)
(28,487,847) (66,636,766) 807,251
(1,665,820) - (439,064)
(12,381) (5,354) (2,717)
(1,678,201) (5,354) (441,781)
(30,166,048) (66,642,120) 365,470
(1,092,359) (361,849) (878,377)
- (170,467) -
(1,092,359) (532,316) (878,377)
(31,258,407) (67,174,436) (512,907)

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2022

Income

Bank interest income
Interest income
Dividend income

Net fair value loss on financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Total expense

Expenses

Management fees

Administration, depositary & operating fees
General expenses

Total operating expenses

Net loss before finance costs and taxation

Finance costs
Distributions

Bank interest expense
Total finance costs

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Total taxation

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Notes

N

(o2}

Barings Europa

Barings Hong

Barings Global

Fund Kong China Fund Bond Fund

30 April 2022 30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Us$ Us$ Us$
3,592 8,872 2,319

- - 696,573

875,596 31,962,798 -
(1,647,203) (844,535,680) (11,813,720)
(768,015) (812,564,010) (11,114,828)
(370,238) (25,195,870) (518,278)
(133,285) (9,059,487) (309,767)
(10,554) (30,606) (6,497)
(514,077) (34,285,963) (834,542)
(1,282,092) (846,849,973) (11,949,370)
(175,214) - (175,292)
(4,695) (24,245) (3,396)
(179,909) (24,245) (178,688)
(1,462,001) (846,874,218) (12,128,058)
(109,597) (1,485,436) 3,923
(109,597) (1,485,436) 3,923
(1,571,598) (848,359,654) (12,124,135)

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2022

Notes
Income
Bank interest income 2
Interest income 2
Dividend income 2
Net fair value loss on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 2
Total expense
Expenses
Management fees 6
Administration, depositary & operating fees 6
General expenses 6
Total operating expenses
Net loss before finance costs and taxation
Finance costs
Distributions 5
Bank interest expense 2

Total finance costs

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
units before taxation

Taxation
Withholding tax on dividends and other investment income
Total taxation

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
units

Barings Global

Barings Global Technology
Balanced Fund* Equity Fund**
30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Us$ Uss$
2,706 -
162,289 -
414,568 9,594
(10,403,923) (2,115,055)
(9,824,360) (2,105,461)
(417,886) (19,730)
(187,162) (7,589)
- (5,942)
(605,048) (33,261)
(10,429,408) (2,138,722)
(18,346) -
(3,117) (2)
(21,463) (2)
(10,450,871) (2,138,724)
(95,085) (2,605)
(95,085) (2,605)
(10,545,956) (2,141,329)

* Barings Global Balanced Fund launched on 5 November 2021 and on launch date, Barings Asia Balanced Fund, a Sub-Fund of Barings Global

Opportunities Umbrella Fund merged into the new Fund.
** Barings Global Technology Equity Fund launched on 16 November 2021.

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations. There were no gains or losses other than those dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive

Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financial year
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial
year

Redemption of redeemable participating units during the
financial year

Income equalisation

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financial year

Notes

Barings ASEAN Barings Asia Barings Australia
Frontiers Fund Growth Fund Fund
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
Us$ Us$ Uss$
532,758,689 179,926,284 68,762,239
(26,327,484) (23,241,285) (6,889,302)
133,219,981 27,895,502 16,640,319
(161,978,626) (47,469,248) (12,605,103)
(9,544) 6 (53,277)
477,663,016 137,111,259 65,854,876

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financial year
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial
year

Redemption of redeemable participating units during the
financial year

Income equalisation

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financial year

Notes

o b

Barings Europa

Barings Hong

Barings Global

Fund Kong China Fund Bond Fund

30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
Us$ Us$ Uss$
25,539,155 1,516,303,487 57,231,030
1,732,633 (214,272,524) (2,639,633)
1,087,998 218,374,111 12,468,329
(3,147,896) (252,857,686) (13,536,193)
(17,457) (3,838) 12,975
25,194,433 1,267,543,550 53,536,508

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Notes
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financial year
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units
Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial
year 4
Redemption of redeemable participating units during the
financial year 4
Income equalisation 5

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financial year

Barings Global

Barings Global Technology Barings Europe
Balanced Fund Equity Fund Select Fund*
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
uss$ uss$ €
74,958,523 5,556,147 -
(6,882,328) (65,591) 7,440,968
2,342,837 155,465 47,845,720
(6,470,255) (22,356) (4,009,812)
(181) - -
63,948,596 5,623,665 51,276,876

* The Barings Europe Select Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financial year
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units

Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial
year

Redemption of redeemable participating units during the
financial year

Income equalisation

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financial year

Notes

Barings Global

Dividend
Barings German Champions Barings China
Growth Fund* Fund**  A-Share Fund***
30 April 2023 30 April 2023 30 April 2023
€ Us$ Uss$
4,439,243 5,534,834 243,412
18,917,562 20,476,738 8,400,224
(541,967) (335,433) -
- 67 -
22,814,838 25,676,206 8,643,636

* The Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.
** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.
*** The Barings China A-Share Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Barings Global
Equity Allocation

Fund*
30 April 2023
Notes Uss$

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units at the beginning of the financial

year -
Increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units 3,276,702
Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial year 4 53,387,292
Redemption of redeemable participating units during the financial year 4 (700,000)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units at the end of the financial

year 55,963,994

* The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds PIc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2022

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financial year
Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating units

Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial
year

Redemption of redeemable participating units during the
financial year

Income equalisation

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financial year

Notes

Barings ASEAN
Frontiers Fund
30 April 2022
uUss$

460,512,228
(31,258,407)
356,230,903

(252,674,502)
(51,533)

Barings Asia
Growth Fund
30 April 2022

Us$

240,744,345

(67,174,436)

96,615,712

(90,259,360)

23

Barings Australia
Fund

30 April 2022
uss$

75,622,920
(512,907)
27,544,591

(34,208,527)
316,162

532,758,689

179,926,284

68,762,239

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2022

Notes

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financial year

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating units

Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial

year

Redemption of redeemable participating units during the

financial year

Income equalisation

o b

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financial year

Barings Europa

Barings Hong

Barings Global

Fund Kong China Fund Bond Fund

30 April 2022 30 April 2022 30 April 2022
Us$ Us$ Us$
31,520,704 2,436,986,287 78,088,750
(1,571,598) (848,359,654) (12,124,135)
2,024,783 356,742,083 15,296,862
(6,415,937) (429,065,917) (24,029,814)
(18,797) 688 (633)
25,539,155 1,516,303,487 57,231,030

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2022

Barings Global

Barings Global Technology
Balanced Fund* Equity Fund**

30 April 2022 30 April 2022

Notes uss$ us$

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units at the
beginning of the financial year - -

Decrease in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units (10,545,956) (2,141,329)

Issue of redeemable participating units during the financial year 4 101,182,144 7,697,476
Redemption of redeemable participating units during the financial year 4 (15,677,639) -
Income equalisation 5 (26) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units at the

end of the financial year 74,958,523 5,556,147

* Barings Global Balanced Fund launched on 5 November 2021 and on launch date, Barings Asia Balanced Fund, a Sub-Fund of Barings Global
Opportunities Umbrella Fund merged into the new Fund.
** Barings Global Technology Equity Fund launched on 16 November 2021.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”)
as issued by the UK Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”), and Irish law and certain provisions of the European Communities
(Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (the “UCITS Regulations”). Accounting
standards generally accepted in Ireland in preparing financial statements giving a true and fair view are those issued by the
Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”).

Barings International Umbrella Fund (the “Unit Trust”) has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “CBI”) pursuant
to the Unit Trusts Act, 1990, and the Trust Deed. As the Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund, Barings Asia Growth Fund, Barings
Australia Fund, Barings Europa Fund, Barings Hong Kong China Fund, Barings Global Bond Fund and Barings Global Balanced
Fund (the “Funds”) are registered for sale in Hong Kong, the Unit Trust has also been authorised by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC”) pursuant to the provisions of the Hong Kong Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds, supplemented
or consolidated from time to time.

The Unit Trust meets all the conditions set out in FRS 102, section 7 and consequently has availed of the exemption available to
certain funds not to prepare a statement of cash flows.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of the judgements made about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities, including derivative financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss. The financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Fair value measurement

By fully adopting FRS 102, in accounting for its financial instruments, a reporting entity is required to apply either (a) the full
requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and
measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and only the disclosure requirements
of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, or c) the recognition and measurement
provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments
and Other Financial Instruments. The Unit Trust has chosen to implement (b) the recognition and measurement provisions of
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic
Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments.

The use of the IAS 39 recognition and measurement provisions is in line with the pricing policy, which outlines that the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities be valued at the last traded prices. The financial statements include all the trades received
up until 12:00p.m. (Irish time) on 28 April 2023, the valuation point for the Unit Trust.

An adjustment has been made to the value of investments in Barings Europa Fund, Barings Global Bond Fund, Barings Global
Balanced Fund, Barings Europe Select Fund, Barings German Growth Fund, Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund and
Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund to reflect the close of business prices on 28 April 2023.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement (continued)
The tables below detail the reconciliation of NAV adjustments made:

Barings Global

Technology

Equity Fund

us$

Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation 5,640,619
Fair Value adjustment removal (16,954)
Financial Statements NAV 5,623,665
Barings Europa Barings Global

Fund Bond Fund

uss$ Us$

Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation 24,815,927 53,085,502
Adjustment to value investment at close of business prices 378,506 451,006
Financial Statements NAV 25,194,433 53,536,508

Barings Global
Balanced Fund

Barings Europe
Select Fund*

uUs$ €
Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation 63,531,998 50,922,259
Adjustment to value investment at close of business prices 416,598 354,617
Financial Statements NAV 63,948,596 51,276,876

* The Barings Europe Select Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

Barings German

Barings Global

Growth Fund* Dividend

Champions

Fund**

€ Us$

Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation 22,575,890 25,477,654
Adjustment to value investment at close of business prices 238,948 198,552
Financial Statements NAV 22,814,838 25,676,206

*The Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.

** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.

Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation
Adjustment to value investment at close of business prices
Financial Statements NAV

Barings Global
Equity Allocation
Fund*

Us$

55,488,273
475,721

55,963,994

*The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

An adjustment has been made to the value of investments in Barings Global Balanced Fund and Barings Global Technology

Equity Fund to reflect the close of business prices on 29 April 2022.
The tables below detail the reconciliation of NAV adjustments made:

Barings Australia

Barings Hong

Fund Kong China Fund

uUss$ Us$
Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation 68,364,918 1,509,987,955
Fair Value adjustment removal 397,321 6,315,532
Financial Statements NAV 68,762,239 1,516,303,487
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement (continued)

Barings Global Barings Global

Balanced Fund Technology

Equity Fund

Us$ uss$

Dealing NAV per 12.00 pm (Irish Time) Valuation 75,864,368 5,721,436
Adjustment to value investment at close of business prices (905,845) (165,289)
Financial Statements NAV 74,958,523 5,556,147

(b) Foreign exchange transaction

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the Unit Trust’s financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which it operates (the “functional currency”). The functional currency of Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund, Barings Asia Growth
Fund, Barings Australia Fund, Barings Europa Fund, Barings Hong Kong China Fund, Barings Global Bond Fund, Barings Global
Balanced Fund, Barings Global Technology Equity Fund, Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund, Barings China A-Share Fund
and Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund is the US dollar, as the majority of share classes are subscribed in US dollars. The
functional currency of Barings Europe Select Fund and Barings German Growth Fund is the euro based on the same rationale.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional and presentation currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Proceeds from subscriptions and amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating units are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

They represent the difference between an instrument's initial carrying amount and disposal amount, or cash payments or receipts
made on derivative contracts (excluding payments or receipts on collateral margin accounts for such instruments).

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Classification

The Funds classify their investments in securities as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
These financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading or designated by the Directors of the Manager at
fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading are those acquired or incurred principally for the purposes of selling or
repurchasing in the short term. Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception
are those that are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with the Funds’ documented
investment strategies. The Funds’ policy is for Baring Asset Management Limited (the “Investment Manager”) and the Directors
of the Manager to evaluate the information about these financial assets on a fair value basis together with other related financial
information. These financial assets and financial liabilities are expected to be realised within 12 months of the Statement of
Financial Position date.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Recognition/derecognition

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which the Funds commit to purchasing
or selling the investment. The financial statements include all the trades received up until the valuation point for each Fund as
disclosed on page 4. Any trades received subsequent to these points are not reflected in the financial statements. Investments
are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Funds have transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial assets and financial liabilities
classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' are calculated using the First In First Out (“FIFO”) method. They represent the
difference between an instrument's initial carrying amount and disposal amount, or cash payments or receipts made on derivative
contracts (excluding payments or receipts on collateral margin accounts for such instruments).

Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction
costs are included in the ‘net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for each individual Fund. Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value at the relevant valuation point for each Fund as disclosed on page 4.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘Financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year in which they arise.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. As a result of the Unit Trust’s decision to implement the recognition and measurement
provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the Fund's
valuation point on the reporting date.

The Unit Trust’s fair valuation input utilises the last traded market price for both financial assets and financial liabilities where the
last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread,
management will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fair value.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Funds use a variety of methods and make assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at the Statement of Financial Position date. Unquoted investments are valued in accordance with the most
recent valuation made by the Manager. In the absence of a price being available for a security, the Directors of the Manager can
determine such a valuation where appropriate. Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.

Investment Funds are stated at fair value, which is represented by the unaudited NAV of the underlying investment as reported
by the management of these investment funds. The Unit Trust estimates that this valuation method most fairly represents the
amount that would have been realised had the investment been sold as at the date of these financial statements.

Forward foreign currency transactions

”»

Forward foreign currency transactions “FFCT’s” are measured at fair value based on the closing prices of the FFCTs contract
rates on the relevant foreign exchange market on a daily basis. Realised and unrealised gains and/or losses are reported in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Futures contracts

A futures contract is an agreement between two parties to buy and sell a security, index or currency at a specific price or rate
at a future date. Upon entering into a futures contract, the Funds are required to deposit with a broker an amount of cash or
cash equivalents equal to a certain percentage of the contract amount. This is known as the “initial cash margin”. Subsequent
payments (“variation margins”) are made or received by the Funds each day, depending on the daily fluctuation in the value of
the contract.

The daily changes in contract value are recorded as unrealised gains or losses, and the Funds recognise a realised gain or loss
when the contract is closed. Unrealised gains and losses on futures contracts are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

(d) Income

Interest income and interest expenses

Interest income and interest expenses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for all debt instruments and
cash using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant year. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial
instrument, or a shorter year where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.

Dividend Income

Dividends are credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the dates on which the relevant securities are listed as
"ex-dividend". Dividend income is shown gross of any irrecoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income, and net of any tax credits.

(e) Expenses

All expenses, including management fees, administration fees and depositary fees, are recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis. The Manager meets all other expenses incurred by the Unit Trust in connection
with its services.

(f) Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their acquisition origination.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

(g) Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
difference between the proceeds and the amounts payable is recognised over the year of the payable using the effective interest
method.

(h) Redeemable participating units

Redeemable participating units are redeemable at the unitholder’s option and are classified as financial liabilities. The accounting
policy for recognition of subscriptions and redemptions is that they were recorded effective from the trade date for financing
reporting purposes.

BARINGS
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Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Redeemable participating units (continued)

The redeemable participating unit can be put back into the Unit Trust on any business day of the Fund for cash equal to a
proportionate unit of the Fund’s Net Asset Value. The redeemable participating unit is carried at the redemption amount that is
payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the unitholder exercised their right to put the unit back into the Unit Trust.

In accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed, listed investments and investments with prices quoted in over-the-counter
markets or by market makers are stated at the last traded price on the valuation day for the purpose of determining the Net Asset
Value per unit for subscriptions and redemptions and for various fee calculations.

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units represent a liability in the Statement of Financial Position,
carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of Financial Position date if the unitholder exercised
the right to redeem the unit to the Fund.

(i) Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed
of the financial instrument. When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised initially, an entity shall measure it at its fair
value through profit or loss plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or
financial liability. They include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers or dealers. Transaction costs are included
in the ‘net fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
for each individual Fund. See note 6, ‘Significant agreements and fees’, for further information on transaction costs.

(j) Distributions
Note 5 discloses all distributions declared and paid during the year.

Distributions in respect of Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund Class A Inc and Class | Inc units, Barings Asia Growth Fund Class A Inc
and Class | Inc units, Barings Australia Fund Class A Inc units, Barings China A-Share Fund Class X Inc units, Barings Europa
Fund Class A Inc and Class C Inc units, Barings German Growth Fund Class B Inc and Class J Inc units, Barings Global Bond
Fund Class | Inc units, Barings Hong Kong China Fund Class A Inc, Class C Inc and Class | Inc units, are normally paid annually
no later than 31 July of each year.

Distributions in respect of Barings Europe Select Fund Class B Inc, Class | Inc and J Inc units and Barings Global Bond Fund
Class A Inc units will normally be paid semi-annually and no later than 31 January and 31 July in each year.

Distributions in respect of Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund Class F Inc and Class | Inc will normally be paid quarterly
and no later than 31 January, 30 April, 31 July and 31 August in each year.

Distributions in respect of Barings Global Bond Fund Class A RMB Hedged Inc and Barings Global Balanced Fund Class A Inc
are normally paid monthly no later than the last business day of each month.

Distributions may be declared from net income and net fair value gains on financial assets. Unitholders should note that
distributions below US$100/£50/€100 are automatically reinvested. The distribution on these units is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income as finance costs on an ex-date basis. Distributions in respect of Barings Global Bond Fund distributions
may be paid out of capital and/or any surplus net income and/or any capital gains less realised and unrealized capital losses.
Accumulating share classes will not pay distributions.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Net income equalisation

Net income equalisation is accrued net income included in the price of units purchased and redeemed during the accounting
year. The subscription price of units is deemed to include an equalisation payment calculated by reference to the accrued net
income of the relevant Fund, and the first distribution in respect of any unit will include a payment of income usually equal to the
amount of such equalisation payment. The redemption price of each unit will also include an equalisation payment in respect of
the accrued net income of the relevant Fund up to the date of redemption. Income equalisation is detailed on the statement of
changes in net assets of each Fund where applicable.

Cash and cash equivalents, margin cash and bank overdrafts

Cash, margin cash and cash equivalents is valued at their fair value with interest accrued, where applicable. Barings ASEAN
Frontiers Fund held cash deposits of US$20,853,185 (30 April 2022: US$20,685,190), Barings Asia Growth Fund held cash
deposits of US$1,773,108 (30 April 2022: US$8,648,331), Barings Australia Fund held cash deposits of US$2,087,484 (30 April
2022: US$1,496,876), Barings Europa Fund held cash deposits of US$159,223 (30 April 2022: US$342,109), Barings Hong Kong
China Fund held cash deposits of US$29,389,842 (30 April 2022: US$8,672,996) Barings Global Bond Fund held cash deposits
of US$763,231 (30 April 2022: US$463,540), Barings Global Balanced Fund held cash deposits of US$1,833,452 (30 April
2022: US$1,369,434), Barings Global Technology Equity Fund held cash deposits of US$249,553 (30 April 2022: US$221,934),
Barings Europe Select Fund (merged on 14 October 2022) held cash deposits of EUR€2,312,245, Barings German Growth
Fund (merged on 14 October 2022) held cash deposits of EUR€86,938, Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund (merged on
7 October 2022) held cash deposits of US$984,710, Barings China A-Share Fund (merged on 18 November 2022) held cash
deposits of US$162,061, and Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund (merged on 18 November 2022) held cash deposits of
US$279,097 maintained with The Northern Trust Company (“TNTC”), London branch, uninvested cash balances are being swept
daily into the Northern Trust Global Funds.

Any margin cash is held by the broker as this is restricted cash. As at 30 April 2023 and 30 April 2022, the following margin cash
was held:

Barings Global Bond Fund

30 April 2023 30 April 2022

Us$ Us$

Union Bank Switzerland ("UBS") 151,003 276,496

Total 151,003 276,496
Barings Global Balanced Fund

30 April 2023 30 April 2022

us$ Us$

Union Bank Switzerland ("UBS") 738,203 309,909

Total 738,203 309,909
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Redeemable units

Financial year ended 30 April 2023
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund

ClassAUSD ClassAAUD ClassACHF Class AEUR

Inc Hedged Acc Hedged Acc Inc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 823,889 4,764 54,802 210,906
Issued 200,553 1,470 150 37,518
Redeemed (191,739) (3,743) (495) (40,452)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 832,703 2,491 54,457 207,972
Class AGBP ClassAEUR ClassARMB Class AUSD

Inc Acc Hedged Acc Acc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 21,091 27,739 38 51,639
Issued 6,287 6,607 - 12,558
Redeemed (4,318) (11,895) - (12,226)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 23,060 22,451 38 51,971
Class ICHF Class|EUR Class| GBP Class|USD

Hedged Acc Acc Acc Acc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 36,184 87,674 166,199 560,897
Issued 2,057 13,052 55,855 190,498
Redeemed (7,335) (5,511) (44,410) (330,720)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 30,906 95,215 177,644 420,675
Class | USD

Inc

No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 10
Issued -
Redeemed -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 10
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)
Barings Asia Growth Fund

ClassAUSD ClassAEUR ClassAGBP Class|EUR

Inc Inc Inc Hedged Inc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 906,284 181,381 22,019 204,000
Issued 201,548 13,854 1,931 13
Redeemed (332,322) (24,525) (3,238) -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 775,510 170,710 20,712 204,013

Class IGBP ClassIUSD Class|EUR

Acc Acc Acc

No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 48,972 189,236 16,370
Issued 13,775 17,994 11,692
Redeemed (21,226) (50,074) (16,226)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 41,521 157,156 11,836

Barings Australia Fund

ClassAUSD ClassAAUD ClassAEUR Class A GBP

Inc Inc Inc Inc

No. of Units No. of Units No. of Units No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 375,911 10,315 31,658 2,181
Issued 53,832 4,013 7,725 938
Redeemed (68,507) (4,260) (10,735) (1,316)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 361,236 10,068 28,648 1,803

Class IGBP Class 1 USD

Acc Acc

No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 37,382 1,381
Issued 46,388 -
Redeemed (9,647) —
Balance as at 30 April 2023 74,123 1,381

Barings Europa Fund

ClassAUSD Class AEUR Class CEUR Class CUSD

Inc Inc Inc Inc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 1 May 2022 313,607 116,725 2,847 2,614
Issued 15,731 4,156 - 17
Redeemed (37,973) (17,689) - (377)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 291,365 103,192 2,847 2,254
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)

Barings Hong Kong China Fund

Balance as at 1 May 2022
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2023

Balance as at 1 May 2022
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2023

Balance as at 1 May 2022
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2023

* The Barings Hong Kong China Fund Class | GBP Inc was launched on 12 October 2022.

Barings Global Bond Fund

Balance as at 1 May 2022
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2023

Balance as at 1 May 2022
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2023

ClassAUSD ClassAEUR ClassA GBP Class AHKD
Inc Inc Inc Inc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
896,092 174,477 6,005 6,725
131,848 26,367 1,436 6,955
(141,789) (24,514) (1,209) (5,768)
886,151 176,330 6,232 7,912
Class ARMB Class AUSD Class CEUR Class C USD
Hedged Acc Acc Inc Inc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

10 67,306 537 391

- 8,314 95 -
- (22,944) (331) (2)

10 52,676 301 389
ClassIGBP Class1USD Class | GBP

Acc Acc Inc*

No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

9,344 23,986 -

8,700 327 10

(7,240) (10,593) -

10,804 13,720 10

Class AEUR Class AGBP Class ARMB Class ARMB
Inc Inc Hedged Acc Hedged Inc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
211,583 14,496 65 64
19,768 3,485 - -
(39,591) (4,387) - -
191,760 13,594 65 64
Class AUSD Class| GBP Class|USD

Inc Inc Acc

No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

2,172,498 20,778 53,308

533,827 2,475 12,145
(552,021) (10,985) (12,177)

2,154,304 12,268 53,276

71



Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)
Barings Global Balanced Fund

Class AUSD ClassAUSD Class|USD
Acc Inc Acc
No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2022 1,911,682 45,416 6,941
Issued 59,247 2,487 1,924
Redeemed (173,469) (5,315) (2,531)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 1,797,460 42,588 6,334
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund
Class AUSD Class F1 Class IGBP Class | USD
Acc USD Acc Acc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2022 20,000 20,000 14,227 20,000
Issued - — 1,601 -
Redeemed - — (232) -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 20,000 20,000 15,596 20,000
Barings Europe Select Fund*
Class BGBP Class BEUR ClassBEUR Class|USD
Inc Acc Inc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 14 October 2022 - - - -
Issued 49,401 232,091 283,048 10
Redeemed (5,510) (15,668) (1,901) -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 43,891 216,423 281,147 10
Class IGBP Class| EUR Classl EUR ClassJ EUR
Inc Inc Acc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 14 October 2022 - - - -
Issued 199 8 8 64,729
Redeemed — — — (1,779)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 199 8 8 62,950
Class J EUR Class J GBP
Inc Inc
No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 14 October 2022 - -
Issued 339,884 48,657
Redeemed (44,906) (7,081)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 294,978 41,576

* The Barings Europe Select Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)

Barings German Growth Fund*

Class BEUR Class BEUR ClassB GBP Class|USD
Acc Inc Acc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 14 October 2022 - - - -
Issued 1,539,707 153,174 343,932 10
Redeemed (43,714) (1,037) (5,924) -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 1,495,993 152,137 338,008 10
Class JEUR Class J GBP Class J GBP
Acc Acc Inc
No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 14 October 2022 - - -
Issued 12,069 14,921 10,730
Redeemed - (45) (479)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 12,069 14,876 10,251
* The Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14 October 2022.
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund*
ClassAUSD Class FGBP Class F GBP Class FUSD
Acc Acc Inc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 7 October 2022 - - - -
Issued 8,558 576 115 10
Redeemed - (173) — -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 8,558 403 115 10
Class FUSD ClassIGBP Class XUSD Class|GBP
Inc Acc Acc Inc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 7 October 2022 - - - -
Issued 1" 98,418 200,000 10
Redeemed - (15,950) (63) -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 1 82,468 199,937 10
Class | USD
Inc
No. of Units
Balance as at 7 October 2022 -
Issued 77
Redeemed -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 77

* The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)
Barings China A-Share Fund*

Class IGBP Class FHKD Class FGBP Class F EUR

Acc Acc Acc Acc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 18 November 2022 - — - -
Issued 10 78 249 10
Redeemed - - - -
Balance as at 30 April 2023 10 78 249 10

Balance as at 18 November 2022
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2023

Class FUSD Class XUSD Class XGBP Class AUSD
Acc Acc Inc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

10 262,028 87,394 1,058

10 262,028 87,394 1,058

* The Barings China A-Share Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds PIc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund*

Class I|USD Class X USD

Acc Acc

No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 18 November 2022 - -
Issued 10 423,823
Redeemed — (5,571)
Balance as at 30 April 2023 10 418,252

* The Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 18 November 2022.

Financial year ended 30 April 2022

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund

Balance as at 1 May 2021
Issued

Redeemed

Balance as at 30 April 2022

ClassAUSD ClassAAUD ClassACHF Class AEUR

Inc Hedged Acc Hedged Acc Inc

No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
869,059 13,737 9 215,989
264,596 8,925 57,093 33,166

(309,766) (17,898) (2,300) (38,249)
823,889 4,764 54,802 210,906
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Financial year ended 30 April 2022 (continued)
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund (continued)

Class AGBP ClassAEUR ClassARMB Class AUSD
Inc Acc Hedged Acc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 24,817 9,353 38 43,443
Issued 5,576 25,030 - 22,170
Redeemed (9,302) (6,644) — (13,974)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 21,091 27,739 38 51,639
Class ICHF Class|EUR Class| GBP Class|USD
Hedged Acc Acc Acc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 9 90,101 163,657 220,443
Issued 37,261 47,489 62,724 705,938
Redeemed (1,086) (49,916) (60,182) (365,484)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 36,184 87,674 166,199 560,897
Class | USD
Inc*
No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 -
Issued 10
Redeemed -
Balance as at 30 April 2022 10
* The Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund Class | USD Inc was launched on 25 May 2021.
Barings Asia Growth Fund
ClassAUSD ClassAEUR ClassAGBP Class|EUR
Inc Inc Inc Hedged Inc*
No. of Units  No. of Units No. of Units No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 1,064,801 171,781 23,857 -
Issued 275,522 60,420 1,734 204,000
Redeemed (434,039) (50,820) (3,572) -
Balance as at 30 April 2022 906,284 181,381 22,019 204,000
Class IGBP ClassIUSD Class | EUR
Acc Acc Acc
No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 36,157 146,524 43,477
Issued 19,176 114,170 19,202
Redeemed (6,361) (71,458) (46,309)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 48,972 189,236 16,370

* The Barings Asia Growth Fund Class | EUR Hedged Inc was launched on 2 November 2021.
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2022 (continued)

Barings Australia Fund

ClassAUSD ClassAAUD ClassAEUR Class AGBP
Inc Inc Inc Inc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 314,381 6,963 27,704 1,757
Issued 151,078 5,758 8,790 1,702
Redeemed (89,548) (2,406) (4,836) (1,278)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 375,911 10,315 31,658 2,181
Class IGBP Class | USD
Acc Acc
No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 31,005 109,625
Issued 14,272 1,299
Redeemed (7,895) (109,543)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 37,382 1,381
Barings Europa Fund
ClassAUSD ClassAEUR ClassCEUR Class CUSD
Inc Inc Inc Inc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 371,720 123,618 4,459 2,708
Issued 17,037 14,691 - -
Redeemed (75,150) (21,584) (1,612) (94)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 313,607 116,725 2,847 2,614
Barings Hong Kong China Fund
Class AUSD Class AEUR Class AGBP Class A HKD
Inc Inc Inc Inc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 944,585 180,456 4,116 5,185
Issued 147,550 24,128 2,747 6,359
Redeemed (196,043) (30,107) (858) (4,819)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 896,092 174,477 6,005 6,725
Class ARMB Class AUSD Class CEUR Class C USD
Hedged Acc Acc Inc Inc
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 10 65,975 218 581
Issued - 20,050 1,816 -
Redeemed - (18,719) (1,497) (190)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 10 67,306 537 391
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2022 (continued)
Barings Hong Kong China Fund (continued)

Class IGBP Class | USD
Acc Acc
No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 6,233 20,672
Issued 6,995 4,320
Redeemed (3,884) (1,006)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 9,344 23,986
Barings Global Bond Fund
Class AEUR Class AGBP Class ARMB Class ARMB
Inc Inc Hedged Acc* Hedged Inc**
No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 230,204 10,125 - -
Issued 34,311 5,000 65 64
Redeemed (52,932) (629) — —
Balance as at 30 April 2022 211,583 14,496 65 64
Class AUSD Class| GBP Class|USD
Inc Inc Acc
No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units
Balance as at 1 May 2021 2,463,762 24,776 68,872
Issued 510,453 6,549 13,439
Redeemed (801,717) (10,547) (29,003)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 2,172,498 20,778 53,308
* The Barings Global Bond Fund Class A RMB Hedged Acc was launched on 4 June 2021.
** The Barings Global Bond Fund Class A RMB Hedged Inc was launched on 14 July 2021.
Barings Global Balanced Fund*
ClassAUSD ClassAUSD ClassIUSD
Acc Inc Acc
No. of Units No. of Units No. of Units
Balance as at 5 November 2021 - - -
Issued 2,276,795 47,426 7,894
Redeemed (365,113) (2,010) (953)
Balance as at 30 April 2022 1,911,682 45,416 6,941

* The Barings Global Balanced Fund was launched on 5 November 2021 and on launch date, Barings Asia Balanced Fund, a Sub-Fund of

Barings Global Opportunities Umbrella Fund merged into the new Fund.
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Redeemable units (continued)

Financial year ended 30 April 2022 (continued)
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund*

Class AUSD Class F1 Class IGBP Class I USD

Acc USD Acc Acc Acc

No. of Units No. of Units  No. of Units  No. of Units

Balance as at 16 November 2021 - — - -
Issued 20,000 20,000 14,227 20,000

Redeemed — — — —
Balance as at 30 April 2022 20,000 20,000 14,227 20,000

* The Barings Global Technology Equity Fund was launched on 16 November 2021.

Distributions

The following distributions were declared by the below Funds during the financial year ended 30 April 2023 and 30 April 2022:

Distribution Distributed Income

frequency amount paid* equalisation**

Us$ Us$

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A USD Inc Annually (1,288,752) (23,748)
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class | USD Inc Annually (10) -
€ €

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A EUR Inc Annually (312,285) 11,416
£ £

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A GBP Inc Annually (26,211) 875
us$ Us$

Total distributions for the Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund (1,651,643) (9,544)
€ €

Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class | EUR Hedged Inc Annually - 5
us$ Us$

Total distributions for the Barings Asia Growth Fund - 6
Us$ Us$

Barings Australia Fund - Class A USD Inc Annually (1,151,455) (46,191)
AU$ AU$

Barings Australia Fund - Class AAUD Inc Annually (44,051) (907)
€ €

Barings Australia Fund - Class A EUR Inc Annually (91,791) (5,368)
£ £

Barings Australia Fund - Class A GBP Inc Annually (5,309) (499)
us$ us$

Total distributions for the Barings Australia Fund (1,286,690) (53,277)

* Includes distributions with an ex-date of 3 May 2022 which were paid during the current financial year. These distributions with an ex-date of 10
May 2022 reflect the undistributed income on the Fund as at 29 April 2022.

** Income equalisation relates to the dealing activity of distributing classes for the period from 1 May 2022 to 28 April 2023. The income
equalisation of the distributing classes is disclosed separately in the statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares for the financial year ended 30 April 2023.
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Distributions (continued)

Barings Europa Fund - Class A USD Inc
Barings Europa Fund - Class C USD Inc

Barings Europa Fund - Class A EUR Inc

Total distributions for the Barings Europa Fund

Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A GBP Inc
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A HKD Inc

Total distributions for the Barings Hong Kong China Fund

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A USD Inc

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A EUR Inc

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A GBP Inc

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class | GBP Inc

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A RMB Hedged Inc

Total distributions for the Barings Global Bond Fund

Barings Global Balanced Fund - Class A USD Inc

Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund - Class F GBP Inc
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund - Class | GBP Inc

Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund - Class F USD Inc
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund - Class | USD Inc

Total distributions for the Barings Global Dividend Champions

Fund**

Distribution
frequency

Annually
Annually

Annually

Annually

Annually

Semi
Annually

Semi
Annually

Semi
Annually
Semi
Annually

Monthly

Monthly

Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly
Quarterly

Distributed Income
amount paid* equalisation**
Us$ Us$
(166,544) (10,932)
- (2)

€ €
(58,708) (6,165)
us$ Us$
(228,571) (17,457)
£ £

- (297)

HK$ HK$

- (32,754)

USs$ Us$

- (3,838)

us$ Us$
(140,015) 16,084
€ €
(16,020) (2,005)
£ £

(906) 194
(3,095) (643)
CNH CNH

(68) -

us$ Us$
(160,668) 12,975
US$ US$
(43,228) (181)
£ £

(99) 48

(10) 4

Us$ Us$

(10) 4

9) 4

us$ Us$
(150) 67

* Includes distributions with an ex-date of 3 May 2022 which were paid during the current financial year. These distributions with an ex-date of 10

May 2022 reflect the undistributed income on the Fund as at 29 April 2022.

** Income equalisation relates to the dealing activity of distributing classes for the period from 1 May 2022 to 28 April 2023. The income
equalisation of the distributing classes is disclosed separately in the statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating shares for the financial year ended 30 April 2023.

*** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.
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Distributions (continued)

Comparative 30 April 2022

Distribution Distributed Income

frequency amount paid* equalisation**

USs$ Us$

Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A Annually (1,665,820) (51,533)

us$ USs$

Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class A Annually - 23

us$ Us$

Barings Australia Fund - Class A Annually (439,064) 316,162

us$ Us$

Barings Europa Fund - Class A Annually (175,214) (18,797)

USs$ Us$

Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A Annually - 688

us$ Us$

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A USD Inc Semi (156,230) (448)
Annually

€ €

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A EUR Inc Semi (14,735) (88)
Annually

£ £

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A GBP Inc Semi (656) -
Annually

Barings Global Bond Fund - Class | GBP Inc Semi (3,671) (97)
Annually

us$ Us$

Total Barings Global Bond Fund (175,292) (633)

USs$ Us$

Barings Global Balanced Fund*** - Class A USD Inc Monthly (18,346) (26)

*Includes distributions with an ex-date of 4 May 2021 which were paid during the current financial year. These distributions with an ex-date of 1
May 2021 reflect the undistributed income on the Fund as at 30 April 2021.

** Income equalisation relates to the dealing activity of distributing classes for the year from 1 May 2021 to 29 April 2022. The income equalisation
of the distributing classes is disclosed separately in the statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares for the financial year ended 30 April 2022.

*** The Barings Global Balanced Fund was launched on 5 November 2021 and on launch date, Barings Asia Balanced Fund, a Sub-Fund of
Barings Global Opportunities Umbrella Fund merged into the new Fund.
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Significant agreements and fees

Management fees

Barings International Fund Managers (Ireland) Limited (the “Manager”) is entitled under the Trust Deed to charge a management
fee in respect of the Funds at the following percentage rate per annum of the Net Asset Value of the Funds:

Fund/Class Management fee
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A USD Inc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A AUD Hedged Acc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A CHF Hedged Acc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A EUR Inc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A GBP Inc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A RMB Hedged Acc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A EUR Acc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class A USD Acc 1.25%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class | USD Inc 0.75%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class | CHF Hedged Acc 0.75%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class | EUR Acc 0.75%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.75%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class AUSD Inc 1.25%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class A EUR Inc 1.25%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class A GBP Inc 1.25%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class | EUR Hedged Inc 0.75%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class | EUR Acc 0.75%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.75%
Barings Asia Growth Fund - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings Australia Fund - Class A USD Inc 1.25%
Barings Australia Fund - Class AAUD Inc 1.25%
Barings Australia Fund - Class A EUR Inc 1.25%
Barings Australia Fund - Class A GBP Inc 1.25%
Barings Australia Fund - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings Australia Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.75%
Barings Europa Fund - Class A USD Inc 1.25%
Barings Europa Fund - Class A EUR Inc 1.25%
Barings Europa Fund - Class C EUR Inc 1.25%
Barings Europa Fund - Class C USD Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class AUSD Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class AEUR Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A GBP Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A HKD Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A RMB Hedged Acc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class A USD Acc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class C EUR Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class C USD Inc 1.25%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.75%
Barings Hong Kong China Fund - Class | GBP Inc* 0.75%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class AEUR Inc 0.75%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A GBP Inc 0.75%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A RMB Hedged Acc 0.75%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A RMB Hedged Inc 0.75%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class A USD Inc 0.75%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class | GBP Inc 0.50%
Barings Global Bond Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.50%

* The Barings Hong Kong China Fund Class | GBP Inc was launched on 12 October 2022.
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Significant agreements and fees (continued)

Management fees (continued)

Fund/Class Management fee
Barings Global Balanced Fund - Class A USD Acc 1.00%
Barings Global Balanced Fund - Class A USD Inc 1.00%
Barings Global Balanced Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.55%
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund - Class A USD Acc 1.50%
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund - Class F1 USD Acc 0.20%
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund - Class | USD Acc 0.75%
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class B GBP Inc 1.50%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class B EUR Acc 1.50%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class B EUR Inc 1.50%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class J EUR Acc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class J EUR Inc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class J GBP Inc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class | EUR Acc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class | EUR Inc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class | GBP Inc 0.75%
Barings Europe Select Fund* - Class | USD Inc 0.75%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class B EUR Acc 1.50%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class B EUR Inc 1.50%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class B GBP Acc 1.50%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class | USD Acc 0.75%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class J EUR Acc 0.75%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class J GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings German Growth Fund* - Class J GBP Inc 0.75%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class A USD Acc 1.50%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class F GBP Acc 0.30%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class F GBP Inc 0.30%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class F USD Acc 0.30%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class F USD Inc 0.30%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class | GBP Inc 0.75%
Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** - Class | USD Inc 0.75%
Barings China A-Share Fund*** - Class A USD Acc 1.50%
Barings China A-Share Fund*** - Class F EUR Acc 0.25%
Barings China A-Share Fund*** - Class F GBP Acc 0.25%
Barings China A-Share Fund*** - Class F HKD Acc 0.25%
Barings China A-Share Fund*** - Class F USD Acc 0.25%
Barings China A-Share Fund*** - Class | GBP Acc 0.75%
Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund*** - Class | USD Acc 0.50%

* The Barings Europe Select Fund and the Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14
October 2022.

** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.

*** The Barings China A-Share Fund and Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust
on 18 November 2022.

The Manager will not charge a management fee in respect of Class X of each Fund. The fee for the X share classes is subject to a separate
agreement with the Investment Manager and is not paid from the Net Asset Value of the X share class.
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Significant agreements and fees (continued)

Management fees (continued)

The Unit Trust is managed by the Manager, which has delegated investment responsibilities to Baring Asset Management Limited
(the “Investment Manager”). The Investment Manager is an investment management company incorporated in London on 6 April
1994. The Investment Manager is part of the Barings LLC Group and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Massachusetts Mutual
Life Insurance Company (“MassMutual”’). The Investment Manager has appointed Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited,
Barings LLC and Barings Japan Limited (together, the “Sub-Investment Managers”) as the Sub-Investment Managers to the
relevant Funds. The Sub-Investment Managers are also part of the Barings LLC Group. Management fees charged during the
financial year-end are disclosed on each Fund’'s Statement of Comprehensive Income and the outstanding amounts payable for
management fees as at the end of the financial year are disclosed on each Fund’s Statement of Financial Position.

The Manager will discharge the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager out of its own fee. The Investment Manager will
discharge the fees and expenses of the Sub-Investment Managers out of its own fee. The management fee is payable monthly
in arrears and is calculated and accrued by reference to the Net Asset Value of each Funds as at each business day (“valuation
day”).

Where the Net Asset Value of any Fund includes interests in any Investment Fund managed by a subsidiary of the parent
company (a “Barings Fund”), the fee payable to the Manager relating to the holding will be reduced by the percentage rate (if
any) charged to the Barings Fund for comparable management services.

Administration, Depositary and Operating fees

The Manager is entitled to receive an administration, depositary and operating fee. The fee payable is a percentage of the Net
Asset Value of each class and is accrued daily and paid monthly in arrears. The Manager pays the aggregate fees and expenses
of the Administrator and Depositary, in addition to certain other fees and ongoing expenses.

For Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A unit classes (A Hedged
classes 0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all | unit classes (I Hedged classes 0.2625%).

For Barings Asia Growth Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A unit classes (A Hedged
classes 0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all | and X unit classes (I Hedged classes 0.2625%).

For Barings Australia Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A unit classes (A Hedged classes
0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all | unit classes.

For Barings Global Bond Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A unit classes (A Hedged
classes 0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all | unit classes, 0.18% per annum for all F (F Hedged classes 0.1925%) and up to
0.25% per annum for all X unit classes (X Hedged classes up to 0.2625%).

For Barings Europa Fund and Barings Hong Kong China Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for
all A and C unit classes (A Hedged classes 0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all | unit classes.

For Barings Global Balanced Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A unit classes (A Hedged
classes 0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all | unit classes.

For Barings Global Technology Equity Fund, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A unit classes (A
Hedged classes 0.4625%) and 0.25% per annum for all F1 and | unit classes.

For Barings Europe Select Fund*, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A share classes (A Hedged
classes 0.4625%), 0.05% per annum for all B and J share classes and 0.25% per annum for all | and X share classes (I Hedged
classes 0.2625%).

For Barings German Growth Fund®, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A share classes (A
Hedged classes 0.4625%), 0.06% per annum for all B and J share classes and 0.25% per annum for all | and X share classes (|
Hedged classes 0.2625%).

BARINGS

83



Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

Significant agreements and fees (continued)

Administration, Depositary and Operating fees (continued)

For Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund**, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.10% per annum for all share
classes.

For Barings China A-Share Fund***, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.45% per annum for all A share classes and
0.25% per annum for all F, | and X share classes.

For Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund***, the Manager is entitled to receive a fee of 0.25% per annum for all share classes
(Hedged share classes 0.2625%).

Please refer to the Prospectus for full details of the fees payable.

* The Barings Europe Select Fund and the Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 14
October 2022.

** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.

*** The Barings China A-Share Fund and Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust
on 18 November 2022.

Investment funds

The Funds currently invest in Northern Trust Global Funds managed by Northern Trust Global Funds a related party to the
Administrator and Depositary. These holdings are detailed in the schedule of investments.

Trailer fees and reimbursements

Trailer fees (commissions for the marketing of the Funds) are paid to distribution, commission and sales agents out of the
management fees. Reimbursements to institutional investors, who, from a commercial perspective, are holding the Funds’
redeemable participating units for third parties, are also paid out of the management fees.

Transaction costs
The transaction costs incurred by the Funds for the years ended 30 April 2023 and 30 April 2022 were as follows:

Fund 30 April 2023 30 April 2022
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund US$756,398 US$986,153
Barings Asia Growth Fund US$470,581 US$455,017
Barings Australia Fund US$17,827 US$22,818
Barings Europa Fund US$12,398 US$9,832
Barings Hong Kong China Fund US$4,004,392 US$5,911,970
Barings Global Bond Fund - -

Barings Global Balanced Fund US$87,286 US$94,530
Barings Global Technology Equity Fund uUSsS$788 US$2,792
Barings Europe Select Fund* EUR€25,009 N/A

Barings German Growth Fund* EUR€2,436 N/A

Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund** US$3,887 N/A

Barings China A-Share Fund*** US$12,855 N/A

Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund*** US$21,562 N/A

* The Barings Europe Select Fund and the Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 14
October 2022.

** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc into the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.

*** The Barings China A-Share Fund and Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust
on 18 November 2022.
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Related party transactions

Julian Swayne is employed by Barings Investment Services Limited. Alan Behen and Paul Smyth are employees of the Manager.
David Conway was a non-executive Director, independent of the Investment Manager, prior to his resignation on 31 December
2022. Syl O’'Byrne who was appointed on 3 January 2023 and Barbara Healy are both non-executive Directors, independent of
the Investment Manager. The Manager will discharge the fees and expenses of the Investment Manager out of its own fee. The
Investment Manager is part of the Barings LLC Group and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Company (“MassMutual”). Baring Asset Management (Asia) Limited, Barings LLC and Barings Japan Limited (together, the “Sub-
Investment Managers”) are also part of the Barings LLC Group. The Investment Manager will discharge the fees and expenses
of the Sub-Investment Managers out of its own fee. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operation decisions.

Significant unitholdings

The following table details significant concentrations in unitholdings of each Fund, or instances where the units are beneficially
held by other investment funds managed by the Investment Manager or one of its affiliates. As at 30 April 2023 and 30 April 2022,
the following had significant unitholdings in the Unit Trust:

Number of
unitholders with Total % of units held Total % of units held by
beneficial interest by unitholders with investment funds managed
greater than 20% beneficial interest by Barings International
of the units in greater than 20% of Fund Managers (Ireland)
Fund name issue the units in issue Limited
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) 3.02% (30 April 2022: 3.58%)
Barings Asia Growth Fund Nil (30 April 2022:Nil) Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) 7.08% (30 April 2022: 11.11%)
22.03% (30 April 2022:
Barings Australia Fund 1 (30 April 2022: 1) 23.88%) Nil (30 April 2022: Nil)
Barings Europa Fund Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) Nil (30 April 2022: Nil)
Barings Hong Kong China
Fund Nil (30 April 2022: 1) Nil (30 April 2022: 20.44%) 1.05% (30 April 2022: 0.27%)
31.15% (30 April 2022:
Barings Global Bond Fund 1 (30 April 2022: 1) 28.80%) 0.01% (30 April 2022: 0.01%)
Barings Global Balanced Fund Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) Nil (30 April 2022: Nil) 54.17% (30 April 2022: 53.62%)
Barings Global Technology 79.39% (30 April 2022:
Equity Fund 1 (30 April 2022: 1) 80.85%)  79.39% (30 April 2022: 80.85%)
Barings Europe Select Fund* 1 (30 April 2022: N/A)  46.55% (30 April 2022: N/A) 14.65% (30 April 2022: N/A)
Barings German Growth Fund* 1 (30 April 2022: N/A)  85.70% (30 April 2022: N/A) 5.77% (30 April 2022: N/A)
Barings Global Dividend
Champions Fund** 1 (30 April 2022: N/A)  68.57% (30 April 2022: N/A) 68.66% (30 April 2022: N/A)
Barings China-A Share
Fund*** 3 (30 April 2022: N/A)  74.55% (30 April 2022: N/A) 24.96% (30 April 2022: N/A)
Barings Global Equity
Allocation Fund*** 2 (30 April 2022: N/A)  65.57% (30 April 2022: N/A) 57.01% (30 April 2022: N/A)

* The Barings Europe Select Fund and the Barings German Growth Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 14
October 2022.

** The Barings Global Dividend Champions Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust on 7 October 2022.

*** The Barings China A-Share Fund and Barings Global Equity Allocation Fund merged from Barings Investment Funds Plc in to the Unit Trust
on 18 November 2022.
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8. Financial risk management

In accordance with FRS 102: Disclosure, this note details the way in which the Funds manage risks associated with the use of
financial instruments.

The Funds of the Unit Trust are exposed to a variety of financial risks in pursuing their stated investment objectives and policies.
These risks include, but are not limited to, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which in turn includes foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and market price risk). The Funds assume exposure to certain of these risks to generate investment returns on
their portfolios, although these risks can also potentially result in a reduction in the Funds’ net assets.

The Investment Manager will use its best endeavours to minimise the potentially adverse effects of these risks on the Funds’
performance where it can do so, while still managing the investments of the Funds in a way that is consistent with the Funds’
investment objectives.

The investment objective of the Funds is disclosed in the Prospectus and in the Investment Objective and Policy on page 5. The
risks, and the measures adopted by the Funds for managing these risks, are detailed below.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the Statement of Financial Position date and the risk management
policies employed by the Funds are discussed below. These policies have remained substantially unchanged since the beginning
of the financial year to which these financial statements relate.

Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and included foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk,
which are discussed in detail under separate headings within this note.

The Funds' exposure to market risk is that the value of assets would generally fluctuate with, among other things, general
economic conditions, the condition of certain financial markets, international political events and developments or trends in any
particular industry that the Funds' invested in.

The Funds' market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Investment Manager in accordance with policy and procedures in
place. The Funds' overall market positions are reported to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis.

As the majority of the financial instruments are carried at fair value through the profit or loss, all changes in market conditions
directly impact the net assets of the Funds.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is defined in FRS 102 as “the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.”

The Funds are exposed to foreign currency risk as assets and liabilities of the Funds may be denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the Funds, which is the US dollar and Euro. The fluctuations in the rate of exchange between the
currency in which the asset or liability is denominated and the functional currency could result in an appreciation or depreciation
in the fair value of those assets and liabilities. The Investment Manager is permitted but not obliged to use hedging techniques to
attempt to offset market and foreign currency risk.

In accordance with the Unit Trust’s policy, the Investment Manager monitors the Funds’ currency exposures on a daily basis
and reports regularly to the Directors of the Manager, who review the information provided by the Investment Manager on any
significant exposures at their periodic meetings.

The Investment Manager may have used FFCTs on Funds as a tool and technique to hedge these currency exposures. Barings
Global Bond Fund'’s sensitivity to changes in foreign currency rates is included in the VaR risk analysis above.

The Funds’ portfolio statements detail the currency, and therefore the foreign currency risk, of the underlying investments.

BARINGS
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8. Financial risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Foreign exchange transactions and other currency contracts may also be used to provide protection against exchange risks or
to actively overlay currency views onto the Funds’ currency exposure resulting from investing in foreign markets. Such contracts
may, at the discretion of the Investment Manager, be used to hedge some or all of the exchange risk/currency risk arising as a
result of the fluctuation between the denominated currency of the Funds and the currencies in which the Funds’ investments are
denominated, or to pursue an active currency overlay strategy.

A Fund may (but is not obliged to) enter into certain currency-related transactions in order to hedge the currency exposure
of the assets of a Fund attributable to a particular class into the currency of denomination of the relevant class. Any financial
instruments used to implement such strategies with respect to one or more classes shall be assets/liabilities of a Fund as a whole
but will be attributable to the relevant class/es, and the gains/losses on, and the costs of, the relevant financial instruments will
accrue solely to the relevant class.

Any currency exposure of a class may not be combined with or offset against that of any other class of a Fund. The currency
exposure of the assets attributable to a class may not be allocated to other classes. A class will not be leveraged as a result of
currency hedging transactions so that the use of such hedging instruments shall in no case exceed 100% of the Net Asset Value
attributable to the relevant class of a Fund.

The tables below represent each Fund’s exposure to foreign currency as at 30 April 2023 and 30 April 2022. All amounts are
stated in the functional currency of the relevant Fund.

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023
Barings ASEAN Frontiers Fund

Financial assets at Cash
fair value through and cash Other assets % of Net
profit or loss equivalents and liabilities Derivatives  Net exposure Assets
Us$ us$ us$ Us$ Us$

AUD - 408 - 429,468 429,876 0.09
CHF - - - 8,485,218 8,485,218 1.78
CNY - 1 - 10,178 10,179 -
EUR - 58,157 5 (61,526) (3,364) -
GBP - 88,504 (96) (59,211) 29,197 0.01
IDR 125,427,891 - 125,064 - 125,552,955 26.28
MYR 36,367,221 292 - - 36,367,513 7.61
PHP 45,822,761 - 12,403 - 45,835,164 9.60
SGD 98,887,436 5 - - 98,887,441 20.70
THB 96,205,223 - (1,138,408) 158,415 95,225,230 19.94
VND 17,922,836 1,970,856 3,354,626 - 23,248,318 4.87
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8. Financial risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)

Barings Asia Growth Fund

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

uss$
CNY 8,317,026
EUR -
GBP -
HKD 52,386,113
IDR 2,999,812
INR 17,728,356
KRW 20,047,808
MYR 1,082,187
PHP 3,088,500
SGD 2,312,028
THB 4,452,961
TWD 19,027,834

Barings Australia Fund

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

Uss$
AUD 63,745,540
EUR -
GBP -

Barings Europa Fund

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

uss$
CHF 4,075,524
DKK 912,171
EUR 14,434,515
GBP 4,656,388
NOK 488,411
SEK 489,976

Barings Hong Kong China Fund

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss

uss$
CNY 177,645,251
EUR -
GBP -
HKD 979,153,391
TWD 23,840,612

Cash

and cash
equivalents
us$
(1,546,507)
5,847
11,929

637

Cash

and cash
equivalents
Us$
1,342,276
112,864
419,530

Cash

and cash
equivalents
us$

50,494
8,703

Cash

and cash
equivalents
us$
15,639,189
(199,192)
13,584
2,275

Other assets
and liabilities
Uss$

)

(12,542)
(2,489,072)
1,146,496
17,693
877,727

746,153

302,069
(370,276)

Other assets
and liabilities
Uss$

217,573

34

659

Other assets
and liabilities
Us$

49,631
22,404

4,062

Other assets
and liabilities
Us$

(10,344_)
(202)
(8,593,781)

Derivatives
Us$
14,301,620
615
2,489,113
(1,146,496)

(811,268)
(746,136)

(274,316)
370,276

Derivatives
Us$

Derivatives
Us$

(11,505)

Derivatives
Us$

11,202
146,292
(17,967)
8,593,922

Net exposure
us$
6,770,519
14,307,465
2
52,386,154
2,999,812
17,746,686
20,114,267
1,082,485
3,088,517
2,312,028
4,480,714
19,027,835

Net exposure
us$
65,305,389
112,898
420,189

Net exposure
us$
4,075,524
912,171
14,523,135
4,687,495
488,411
494,038

Net exposure
us$
193,295,642
(63,244)
(4,585)
979,155,807
23,840,612

88

% of Net
Assets

4.94
10.43

38.21
2.19
12.94
14.67
0.79
2.25
1.69
3.27
13.88

% of Net
Assets

99.17
0.17
0.64

% of Net
Assets

16.18
3.62
57.64
18.61
1.94
1.96

% of Net
Assets

15.25

77.25
1.88
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8. Financial risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)

Barings Global Bond Fund

AUD
CAD
CHF
CNY
CzZK
EUR
GBP
ILS
JPY
MXN
NOK
NZD
SEK
ZAR

Financial assets at
fair value through

profit or loss
Us$
3,042,564
4,062,502

11,901,295
1,130,832

1,466,777

5,128,084

Barings Global Balanced Fund

EUR
HKD
IDR

JPY

KRW
MYR
NOK
SGD
THB

TWD

Barings Global Technology Equity Fund

CHF
EUR
GBP
KRW
TWD

Financial assets at
fair value through

profit or loss
uss$
1,188,580
4,694,289
306,774

1,831,899
45,524

419,203

2,309,711

Financial assets at
fair value through

profit or loss
uss$

68,870
820,694

88,506
244,938

Cash

and cash
equivalents
us$
35,286
23,678
42

1

87,152
43,556
275
40,795
580

932
29,329
316

18

Cash

and cash
equivalents
Us$
741,130
(35)

(71)
1

Cash

and cash
equivalents
us$

33,384

Other assets
and liabilities
Uss$

23,697

63,502

119,145
1,953

5,451

21,896

Other assets
and liabilities
Us$

150,148

48,802
6,265

2,356
262

Other assets
and liabilities
Us$
467

Derivatives

Us$
(2,189,627)
(2,976,352)

1,160,262

7,271,759
1,276,978

3,302,723

(5,823,091)

Derivatives
Us$

Derivatives
Us$

(4,362_)

Net exposure
us$
911,920
1,173,330
42
1,160,262

1
19,379,351
2,453,319
275
4,815,746
580

932
(643,782)
316

18

Net exposure
us$
2,079,858
4,694,254
306,774
48,731
1,838,164
45,524

1

421,559
262
2,309,711

Net exposure
us$

68,870
821,161
29,022
88,506
244,938

89

% of Net
Assets

1.73
2.23

2.20

36.82
4.66

9.15

% of Net
Assets

3.22
7.27
0.47
0.08
2.85
0.07

0.65

3.58

% of Net
Assets

1.22
14.60
0.51
1.57
4.36



Barings International Umbrella Fund
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

For the financial year ended 30 April 2023

8. Financial risk management (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
For the financial year ended 30 April 2023 (continued)

Barings Europe Select Fund*

Financial assets at Cash
fair value through and cash Other assets % of Net
profit or loss equivalents and liabilities Derivatives  Net expos